
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 
 
 1220 Lakeway Drive (360) 734-9224 
 Bellingham, WA, 98229 Fax 738-8250 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: February 4, 2021 

From:  Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District 

RE: Meeting Procedures During the Covid-19 Emergency  

Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District continues to operate under adjusted procedures in order to 
provide continuous service to our customers. That said, we are taking precautions in an effort to protect 
the health and safety of our staff, commissioners, and customers. Our lobby is currently closed to the 
public, and we are practicing social distancing guidelines as suggested by Governor Inslee and the CDC. 

For the foreseeable future, Commissioners will be attending regular meetings by phone. Per Governor 
Inslee’s Proclamation No. 20-28.3 amending his Stay Home, Stay Health proclamation, the District will 
provide access to interested public via phone/internet utilizing the GoToMeeting platform.  

If you would like to attend the February 10, 2021 work session or regular meeting, details can be found 
below. In this evolving climate, we are committed to doing everything possible to provide opportunity 
for public comment as well as promote health and safety. As such, the District requests that if possible, 
public submit comments in written form by noon the day before a scheduled meeting for inclusion in 
the meeting discussion. 

We appreciate your understanding and patience during these uncertain times. If you have any 
questions, please contact Administrative Assistant Rachael Hope at rachael.hope@lwwsd.org or 360-
734-9224. 

February 10, 2021 Work Session & Regular Board Meeting 
 
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM (PST) – Work Session: District Fiscal Management Policies 
6:30 PM - 8:30 PM (PST) – Regular Board Meeting 
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/340216221 
 
You can also dial in using your phone. 
United States: +1 (571) 317-3122 
 
Access Code: 340-216-221 
 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting 
starts: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/340216221 

Page 1 of 86

https://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/proclamations/20-28.3%20-%20COVID-19%20Open%20Govt%20Waivers%20Ext%20%28tmp%29.pdf
mailto:rachael.hope@lwwsd.org
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/340216221
tel:+15713173122,,340216221
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/340216221


 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA 
February 10, 2021 

6:30 p.m. – Regular Session 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REMOTE MEETING ATTENDANCE PROTOCOLS 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 

At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Commissioners. Please state 
your name prior to making comments. 

 
5. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
7. SPECIFIC ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Presentation—Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant Alternative Analysis 
B. Resolution No. 869—Affirmation of Emergency Declaration Issued by the General 

Manager on January 28, 2021 
C. Authorization for General Manager to Apply for Appointment to the Public Works Board 
D. Disposal of Surplus Items 

 
8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. STAFF REPORTS 

A. General Manager 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 86



 

  
 

Consent Agenda 
 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 4, 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Rachael Hope 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. See below 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

**TO BE UPDATED 2.10.2021** 
 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
 

 Minutes from the January 27, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

 Payroll for Pay Period #03 (01/23/2020 through 02/05/2021) total to be added 

 Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #03 total to be added 

 Accounts Payable Vouchers total to be added 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Fiscal impact is as indicated in the payroll/benefits/accounts payable quantities defined 
above. All costs are within the Board-approved 2021 Budget. 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends the Board approve the Consent Agenda. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
A recommended motion is: 

“I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 
 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 6 

Page 3 of 86



 
Meeting Minutes January 27, 2021 P a g e  | 1 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Minutes 
January 27, 2021 

 
Board President Laura Abele called the Regular Session to order at 8:00 a.m.   
 
Attendees: Commissioner Laura Abele General Manager Justin Clary 
 Commissioner Todd Citron District Engineer/Assistant GM Bill Hunter 
 Commissioner John Carter Finance Manager/Treasurer Debi Denton 
 Commissioner Bruce Ford Operations Manager Brent Winters 
 Commissioner Leslie McRoberts Recording Secretary Rachael Hope 

   District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael 
     

Also in attendance was Melanie Mankamyer of Wilson Engineering. All attendees participated remotely by 
phone or video conferencing.  
 
Roll Call 
General Manager Justin Clary performed a roll call to identify those in attendance, and then verbally 
confirmed that the meeting was noticed in accordance with Resolution No. 859 allowing remote meeting 
attendance as well as in compliance with current statutory requirements. It was confirmed that all participants 
were able to be heard and hear each other clearly. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Action Taken 
McRoberts moved, Citron seconded, approval of: 

 Minutes from the January 13, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

 Payroll for Pay Period #02 (01/09/2021 through 01/22/2021) totaling $47,590.38 

 Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #02 totaling $53,191.34 

 4th Quarter 2020 Payroll Taxes totaling $7,028.70 

 Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $38,181.59 
Motion passed. 

 
On-site Sewage System Policy Discussion  
Together with the city of Bellingham (City) and Whatcom County (County), the District formed a partnership in 
1990 to develop a joint management strategy for the Lake Whatcom watershed. The resulting Lake Whatcom 
Management Program guides actions by the three entities to protect the quality of Lake Whatcom water. 
Herrera Consulting staff provided a presentation to the Board on the results and conclusions of the 2020 

Page 4 of 86



 
Meeting Minutes January 27, 2021 P a g e  | 2 

monitoring effort to assess the impacts of septic systems on the lake during the Board’s September 9, 2020, 
meeting, as well as to the Lake Whatcom Management Program Policy Group during its September 23 
meeting. Since that time, Commissioner Ford has developed a letter regarding septic systems on the north 
shore.  
 
Clary explained he, Melanie Mankamyer of Wilson Engineering, and Commissioner Ford met on January 11 to 
discuss the septic systems issue. The purpose of including the discussion in the January 27 board agenda was 
to illicit further discussion regarding the assessment findings and the District’s policy and direction regarding 
the existing septic systems. Discussion followed. 
 

Action Taken 
Ford moved, Carter seconded, that the Board work with Whatcom County to request that they 
provide Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District with annual septic tank inspection reports . Motion 
passed. 
 
Carter moved, McRoberts seconded, to direct the General Manager to draft a letter to the Lake 
Whatcom Policy Group for the purposes of evaluating the self-assessment of septic systems within 
the watershed and the effectiveness of that policy. Motion passed. 

 
General Manager’s Report 
Clary updated the Board on several topics, including the District’s continued response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, Sudden Valley Community Association staff turnover, and the District’s application to become 
certified with Envirostar. He also recognized Operations staff for their excellent work managing issues at the 
North Point sewer lift station and leak detection near the Division 30 reservoir. 
 
Engineering Department Report 
Hunter highlighted several areas, including a steep uptick in planned development requests and water/sewer 
availabilities since the last Board meeting, indicating the potential for a very active building season this spring 
and summer. He also updated the Board on projects including the Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant and 
upcoming bid openings. Discussion followed. 
 
Finance Department Report 
Denton reported that the finance department is busy working on year-end wrap up, as well as day-to-day 
customer service and keeping customers apprised of applicable Governor proclamations related to the 
pandemic. She updated the Board on COVID-19’s minimal impact on past due accounts, and gave some 
highlights of the 2020 4th Quarter Financial Report and 2020 year end financials. 
 
Operations & Maintenance Department Report 
Winters gave a brief report on field crew operations, including the installation of two new water connections, 
providing a more detailed look at the North Point sewer lift station challenges, and ongoing work televising 
lines to reduce inflow & infiltration. 
 
Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) - Discussion of Potential Litigation with Legal Counsel - 25 
Minutes 
Abele recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session at 9:35 a.m. It was estimated that the Executive 
Session would take about 25 minutes. The purpose of the Executive Session was discussion of potential 

Page 5 of 86



 
Meeting Minutes January 27, 2021 P a g e  | 3 

litigation with legal counsel. Abele recessed the Executive Session and reconvened the Regular Session at 
10:02 a.m. 
 
With no further business, Abele adjourned the Regular Session 10:02 a.m. 
 
 
 
        
Board President, Laura Abele 
 
 
 
 
Attest:                    

               Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope 
 
Minutes approved by motion at  Regular  Special Board Meeting on _________________________ 
     Date Minutes Approved                 
    
  

Page 6 of 86



 

  

Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant 
 Alternatives Analysis 

Briefing #4 
 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 4 , 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Bill Hunter, Assist. GM/District Engineer 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS  
1. Draft Technical Memoranda – Disinfection 

System 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
The existing Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant (SVWTP) is located along Morning 
Beach Drive near the shores of Lake Whatcom and was constructed in 1972. The treatment 
plant utilizes chemical coagulation, flocculation, rapid media filtration, chemical pH 
adjustment, and gas chlorine disinfection prior to temporary storage within a 225,000-
gallon reservoir also located at the site.  

In July 2020, Gray & Osborne (G&O) completed a condition assessment in which engineers 
evaluated the SVWTP from a process, structural/architectural, mechanical, and electrical 
perspective. The assessment identified both high and low priority items that should be 
completed to maintain current and reliable function of the SVWTP into the future. 

Following the condition assessment, G&O was contracted to perform an alternatives 
analysis to help the District select and prioritize specific short- and long-term 
improvements to the treatment equipment and processes currently in use. The work has 
been broken down by major systems. For each system, G&O will develop alternatives and 
document each in the form of a technical memorandum. The results from each system 
analysis will be presented to the Board at regularly scheduled board meetings. 

All of the technical memoranda will ultimately be attached and summarized in an 
Alternatives Analysis Report. The Report will include comparisons and rankings, 
recommendation on modifications to system, cost estimates, figures to relay relative space 
requirements, and more.  

The major systems as written in the scope of work agreement are: 

 Pump Performance Test (Presented to Board 9/30/2020, Briefing #1) 

 Chemical Systems Analysis (Presented to Board 11/25/2020, Briefing #2) 

 Disinfection Systems Analysis 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 7.A 

Page 7 of 86



 Backwash Systems Analysis 

 Filtration System Analysis (Presented to Board 12/30/2020, Briefing #3) 

 Tier 2/3 Seismic and Structural Analysis (Presented to Board 11/25/2020, Briefing #2) 

 Structural/Architectural Workspace Analysis 

 NACE III Coating Inspection (Presented to Board 9/30/2020, Briefing #1) 

G&O has completed the Disinfection Systems Analysis. The draft technical memorandum is 
attached. The consultant will summarize explored alternatives in a presentation, and 
collect Board comments or questions. 

At the 12/30/2020 Briefing #3 on the Filtration System Analysis, six (6) long-term goals and 
objectives were introduced for consideration and discussion. Staff invites the Board and 
interested public to consider these goals, edit/refine them, and suggest additional ones. As 
the District begins evaluating the numerous combinations of subsystem alternatives of a 
whole solution, these goals list will help highlight the best ones. In no particular priority the 
key long-term goals and objectives so far are: 

 G1 - Maintain exceptional WQ performance record 

 G2 - Accommodate immediate need for additional space and separation of 
chemicals/electrical equipment  

 G3 - Provide adequate equipment and process redundancy 

 G4 - Improve access and flexibility for equipment repair/rehabilitation and/or 
future expansion 

 G5 - Provide capacity for full buildout flow (1,400 gpm) 

 G6 - Provide treatment equipment for 30-50 year time period 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This presentation is for discussion only; it is too early in the planning process to estimate 
fiscal impacts of plant improvements. 

APPLICABLE EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT ATTRIBUTE(S) 
Product Quality 
Operational Optimization 
Infrastructure Strategy and Performance 
Water Resource Sustainability 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
No action is recommended at this time. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
Not applicable. 

Page 8 of 86



 

Page 1 of 33 
1130 Rainier Avenue S., Suite 300          Seattle, Washington  98144          (206) 284-0860          Fax (206) 283-3206 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6 

 

 TO: BILL HUNTER, P.E., ASSISTANT GENERAL 

MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER 

 FROM: KEITH STEWART, P.E. 

RUSSELL PORTER, P.E. 

 DATE: JANUARY 15, 2021 

 SUBJECT: SUDDEN VALLEY WTP DISINFECTION 

SYSTEM ANALYSIS 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER 

DISTRICT, WHATCOM COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON 

G&O #20434.00 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

In 2019, the Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District (District) contracted with 

Gray & Osborne to perform a condition assessment for their existing Sudden Valley 

Water Treatment Plant (WTP) as part of a larger effort to analyze the District’s water 

treatment facilities in order to prioritize funds for rehabilitation, modification, and/or 

replacement projects.  The goal of the assessment and subsequent analysis is to identify 

potential improvements for the existing structures and treatment processes in an attempt 

to maximize treatment efficiency and extend the operational life of these facilities.  The 

reports and technical memoranda generated as part of this assessment project will be used 

to develop a strategy for prioritizing modifications to the WTP to ensure it can efficiently 

and cost-effectively provide clean potable water for its existing and projected customers. 

 

This memorandum summarizes the assessment of the existing disinfection system at the 

WTP, provides a description of alternative disinfection methods, and provides analysis 

and preliminary cost estimates for these alternatives. 

 

Final recommendations for disinfection modifications will be presented in the final 

alternatives analysis report, which is scheduled to be completed in spring 2021.  The final 

alternatives analysis report will consider all of the alternatives and recommendations 

compiled for each of the treatment systems and will provide a coordinated set of 

recommendations based on capital costs, District needs, operational costs, and other 

factors. 

 

Page 9 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 2 of 33 
 

BACKGROUND AND EXISTING FACILITIES 

 

Background 

 

The District operates three Group A water systems – South Shore (DOH 95910), 

Eagleridge (DOH 08118), and Agate Heights (DOH 52957) – all of which are in and 

around the shores of Lake Whatcom, which lies southeast of Bellingham in 

Whatcom County, Washington.  The District serves approximately 3,900 residential and 

commercial water system connections with a residential population of approximately 

10,000 people. 

 

The South Shore system is the largest of the three systems and is supplied wholly by 

water treated at its Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant.  In addition to the WTP, the 

District also owns and maintains surface water source, storage, and distribution system 

facilities.  The distribution system includes multiple pressure zones, four booster stations, 

and approximately 2.8 million gallons (MG) of storage in five reservoirs.  The District 

also maintains a secondary intertie with the City of Bellingham Water System 

(DOH 50600) that is used only during emergency situations. 

 

The existing WTP is a rapid-rate direct filtration plant with a rated capacity of 2.0 million 

gallons per day (MGD), which is equivalent to approximately 1,400 gallons per minute 

(gpm), but currently operates at a reduced flow of 1.0 MGD (700 gpm).  The maximum 

allowable water right for this source is 1,526 gpm; however, the equipment and 

components listed in the alternatives below will be sized to accommodate up to the rated 

flow of 1,400 gpm.  This design flow is suitable to serve the projected buildout water 

demand of 1.3 MGD as listed in the District’s 2018 Water System Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The WTP is located at 22 Morning Beach Drive in Bellingham, Washington 98229 and is 

housed in a partially below-grade concrete building located adjacent to Morning Beach 

Park.  The facility was constructed in 1972 and has undergone several minor 

improvements since that time but was most recently upgraded in 1992.  Two centrifugal 

raw water pumps pump water from the Lake Whatcom intake to the WTP where alum 

coagulant is injected.  After mixing with coagulant, water enters the flocculation basin 

before entering the filter distribution trough and the mixed-media filters.  Water proceeds 

through the filters into the underdrain system then exits the filter through the filter 

discharge piping.  The filter discharge piping includes injection points for both soda ash 

(pH adjustment) and chlorine.  This piping then directs the filtered water to the 

below-grade clearwell.  Two transfer pumps located in the WTP move water from the 

clearwell to the chlorine contact basin, which is a welded steel reservoir located adjacent 

to the WTP that provides additional chlorine contact time.  From the chlorine contact 

basin, four finished water pumps pump water to the District’s storage reservoirs and 

Page 10 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 3 of 33 
 

distribution system for consumption.  Additional information on the chlorine disinfection 

system – which is the primary subject of this memorandum – is provided below. 

 

Historical WTP Performance 

 

Historically, the plant has performed well and provides high-quality finished water with 

turbidity less than 0.1 nephelometric turbidity units (NTU).  Raw water is collected from 

the adjacent Lake Whatcom from an outfall located at a depth of approximately 80 feet 

and approximately 350 feet from the typical shoreline.  Lake Whatcom is a large lake that 

is moderately developed on the northern and western shores but is largely undeveloped 

on its eastern shore.  Raw water quality from the Lake Whatcom source is fairly 

consistent with turbidity below 1.0 NTU for most of the year.  Turbidity increases during 

the spring and fall runoff seasons, but typically remains below 5.0 NTU during these 

periods.  Raw water pH is typically between 7.5 and 7.7 and raw water temperature varies 

between 5 and 8 degrees Celsius. 

 

In 2017, Gray & Osborne performed a tracer study analysis at the WTP to verify the 

contact time used for disinfection of filtered water prior to introduction to the distribution 

system.  To conduct this study Gray & Osborne injected a chemical tracer (sodium 

fluoride) to the discharge piping of the existing clearwell transfer pumps, then measured 

the tracer concentration over time from the discharge of the finished water pumps in the 

Finished Water Pump Building.  Using this method, it is possible to estimate the baffling 

efficiency (BE) for the basin, which is then used to determine the contact time (CT) 

provided by the chorine contact basin (CCB).  CT is a disinfection requirement mandated 

by the Washington State Department of Health (DOH) and is equal to the minimum daily 

concentration of chlorine measured in a contact basin multiplied by the minimum daily 

residence time through the contact basin – which is also a function of the baffling 

efficiency.  Prior to conducting the tracer study, the District utilized a BE for the CCB of 

0.7 which is a typical value assumed for baffled tanks.  However, empirical data collected 

during the tracer study showed an average BE value of 0.35 – a value much lower than 

the assumed value.  Additional information on the specifics for this investigation and the 

impacts of this discovery are provided in subsequent sections of this memorandum. 

 

Chorine Disinfection Equipment 

 

The WTP utilizes a gas chlorine injection system to provide disinfectant chemicals to the 

filtered water.  This disinfectant provides the necessary chlorine residual to meet the 

concentration and CT requirements set forth by DOH.  Commercially prepared chlorine 

gas is delivered to the WTP in 150-pound cylinders and stored within a small (40- to 

50-square-foot [sf]) room inside the WTP.  For redundancy, two active cylinders and two 

spare cylinders are stored on site at all times.  The active cylinders are stored on a scale 

Page 11 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 4 of 33 
 

and specialized gas regulators provide the desired gas flow which is measured by a gas 

flow meter.  Chlorine gas is mixed with a sidestream of filtered water, creating a 

hypochlorite solution that is then injected to the piping between the filter units and the 

clearwell.  Additionally, a small amount of chlorine solution is injected to the first 

chamber of the flocculation tank, which helps prevent algal growth within the tank and 

on the filter media.  Because the WTP operates at a constant flow rate, the chlorine 

system is adjusted manually as needed and does not include automated flow control 

equipment.  The chlorine supply to Filters 1 and 2, Filters 3 and 4, and the flocculation 

tank are all controlled separately using individual flow regulators and meters. 

 

The chlorine room at the WTP contains two chlorine gas sensors which will warn 

operations staff of a potential leak so that appropriate ventilation and safety procedures 

can be followed. 

 

The WTP measures chlorine concentration in two locations.  The first location is from the 

clearwell transfer pump discharge piping while the second location is from the CCB 

discharge piping prior to entry to the distribution system.  The chlorine concentration 

measured from the CCB discharge piping is subsequently used for CT calculations.  For 

both sampling locations, a sidestream of water from the discharge piping is directed to 

the corresponding chlorine analyzers, which are both located on the west wall of the 

WTP Main Building near the transfer pumps and laboratory counter.  In 2018, the WTP 

replaced their existing chlorine analyzers with two new Hach CL17 chlorine analyzers to 

measure the chlorine concentration. 

 

Table 1 summarizes critical design criteria for the chlorine disinfection system and 

Figure A-1 in Exhibit A shows a photograph of the existing equipment. 

 

TABLE 1 

 

Chlorine Disinfection System Summary 

 

Parameter Value 

Type Gas 

Manufacturer Regal 

Injection Locations Preflocculation Tank 

 Post Filters 1/2 

 Post Filters 3/4 

Dose (mg/L) 1.2–1.4 

Target Residual (mg/L) 1.0–1.2 (CCB discharge) 

Average Consumption (lb/d) 7.2 (winter) 

 9.8 (summer) 

Page 12 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 5 of 33 
 

 

In 2018 and 2019, the WTP consumed between 7 and 10 pounds per day of gaseous 

chlorine, depending on the season (winter versus summer).  As such, the WTP staff must 

replace one gas cylinder approximately every 2 to 3 weeks.  The staff dose chlorine 

solution in order to maintain a chlorine residual of 1.0 to 1.2 milligrams per liter (mg/L) 

at the entry point to the distribution system. 

 

In February 2020, Gray & Osborne completed a condition assessment for the 

Sudden Valley WTP and noted the findings in the Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant 

Assessment Report (Assessment Report).  This report included recommendations and 

provided budgetary cost estimates to complete the recommended modifications.  With 

regard to the chlorine disinfection system, the Assessment Report noted the following 

items: 

 

● Although the chlorine equipment met the codes in place at the time of 

construction, the existing system does not meet current building code 

requirements.  Specifically, the volume of gas stored exceeds the 

allowable amount (150 pounds, or one standard cylinder) for a facility 

without fire suppression, gas monitoring, and gas storage systems.  This 

exceedance typically pushes the occupancy category to H-3 from F-1 or 

F-2), which has more stringent requirements for safety, storage, and fire 

suppression systems (additional information on the requirements for H-3 

occupancy are provided in Exhibit C). 

 

● Component labeling is inaccurate or absent. 

 

● The coating system within the chlorine room has failed or is failing. 

 

● The gas cylinders utilize only a single restraining chain, which is 

insufficient to protect the system during a seismic event. 

 

Even with the issues listed above, it is important to note that the existing system performs 

well and the WTP staff have no issues with the required operation or maintenance of the 

equipment.  However, chlorine gas is a toxic oxidant gas that does pose some risk to 

operational staff as well as surrounding residences and their tenants.  To mitigate this 

risk, many municipalities have replaced their gas chlorine systems with alternative 

disinfection systems, and these alternatives are discussed in greater detail later in this 

memorandum. 

 

Page 13 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 6 of 33 
 

Chlorine Contact Basin 

 

The WTP utilizes a CCB to provide chlorine contact time for filtered water prior to 

introduction to the distribution system.  Technical information for the CCB is provided in 

Table 2.  Figure A-2 shows a plan view of the CCB, Figure A-3 shows a section view of 

the CCB, and Figure A-4 includes photographs of the existing tank. 

 

TABLE 2 

 

Chlorine Disinfection System Summary 

 

Parameter Value 

Type Circular, Welded Steel 

Year Installed 1994 

Diameter (ft) 40 

Base Elevation (ft) 336.0 

Overflow Elevation (ft) 360.0 

Volume (gal) 225,000 

Gallons per Foot (gal/ft) 9,400 

Inlet and Outlet Vertical, 10-Inch Perforated Riser 

Baffles Three, Steel Plate 

Minimum Water Height (ft) 16.5 (1) 

Residence Time (min at 700 gpm) 320 
(1) As directed by DOH to provide the minimum desired CT for finished water. 

 

Water enters the CCB via a diffuser riser at one end and flows in a serpentine fashion 

between three steel baffles to the outlet diffuser.  The inlet diffuser consists of a 10-inch 

diameter PVC pipe with twenty-five 2-inch diameter holes drilled at 9.25 inches on 

center.  The outlet diffuser riser consists of a 10-inch diameter PVC pipe with fifty 2-inch 

diameter holes drilled at 9.25 inches on center.  These risers act to promote consistent 

flow throughout the full depth of the water column from the inlet to the outlet.  The CCB 

has both exterior and interior coatings.  The CCB is inspected every 5 years and was most 

recently inspected in 2017.  Technical Memorandum 20434-2 (Gray & Osborne, 2020) 

discusses the existing CCB coating system and provides a set of recommendations to help 

ensure its longevity and service life. 

 

The CCB utilizes a single pressure switch for the high-level alarm within the tank; 

however, the District plans to install a redundant alarm (Endress & Hauser DeltaBar 

Series) sometime in 2021.  The switch communicates the alarm signal to the WTP 

programmable logic controller (PLC) which relays the alarm to WTP staff.  Access to the 

Page 14 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 7 of 33 
 

CCB is provided by two 36-inch diameter manways located on opposite sides of the tank 

at ground level as well as a 24-inch access hatch on the roof of the tank. 

 

With regard to the CCB, the Assessment Report and Technical Memorandum 20434-2 

noted the following items: 

 

● The interior coating system is in fair condition, but should be replaced 

within 5 years. 

 

As part of this recoating process, the interior wall and roof members 

should be seal welded to minimize corrosion in areas difficult to coat, and 

the entire structure should be stripe-coated prior to topcoating. 

 

● The exterior coating system is in fair/poor condition and should be 

replaced within 5 years. 

 

● The existing roof vent should be replaced to address corrosion. 

 

● An additional access hatch should be installed to provide an additional 

access/inspection point. 

 

● Security improvements such as removing the existing ladder guards, 

installing padlock covers, and installing additional tamperproof 

components should be completed. 

 

CT System 

 

Surface water systems in Washington must provide a minimum level of CT to protect 

water quality and ensure disinfection of treated water.  CT is the product of the chlorine 

residual (C) and the residence time within the contact basin (T).  The residence time used 

for calculating CT is a function of the flow through the basin, minimum volume within 

the contact basin, and the baffling efficiency of the basin.  As described above, 

Gray & Osborne previously conducted a formal tracer analysis on the District’s CCB.  

Prior to conducting the tracer study, the District utilized a BE for the CCB of 0.7 which is 

a typical value assumed for baffled tanks.  However, empirical data collected during the 

tracer study showed an average BE value of 0.35. 

 

The data analysis and recommendations report for the study conducted on the CCB at the 

WTP in 2017 recommended that the District utilize a revised BE of 0.3, which is less 

than the theoretical value of 0.7 that the WTP had previously been using.  The report also 

recommended that the District consider modifying their CT calculation to include unused 

Page 15 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 8 of 33 
 

clearwell volume, maintain a minimum volume of water in the CCB, and increase the 

target chlorine residual during the cold winter months.  As a result of the tracer study, the 

WTP staff have made several operational changes in order to ensure that they 

consistently provide suitable disinfection of treated water leaving the WTP.  One of these 

operational changes was to maintain a consistent flow through the plant of 700 gpm while 

a second operational change was to increase the target chlorine residual dose from 0.6 to 

0.8 mg/L.  This flow reduction was so that the WTP can provide adequate hydraulic 

residence time through the CCB.  If flows greater than 1,000 gpm are used, then 

additional chlorine must be added to the system, which increases the residual of water 

leaving the WTP, operational costs for the additional chlorine consumption, and the 

potential for customer complaints about the finished water quality and taste. 

 

These changes help ensure that the WTP provides sufficient disinfection for its treated 

water; however, this reduced operational flow will inhibit the WTP’s ability to meet 

projected average daily and maximum daily demands for the South Shore water system. 

 

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

 

Two sets of alternatives are described below.  The first set deals with the disinfection 

system while the second set deals with the CCB.  Although these systems act in concert 

to provide the required disinfection prior to entry into the distribution system, they are 

unique in their function and have independent alternatives for modifications and as such, 

will be investigated separately. 

 

The disinfection system alternatives reviewed below include continued utilization of 

chlorine gas, on-site sodium hypochlorite generation, or commercially provided 

hypochlorite solution.  CCB alternatives include modifications to the existing tank, 

construction of a replacement tank, or construction of a supplemental tank.  Each of these 

alternatives is more thoroughly investigated below and it is important to note that these 

alternatives are provided to help the District determine the best course of action for their 

treatment operation and any modifications to the disinfection system should be 

considered in the context of other changes that are recommended or desired for the WTP. 

 

Page 16 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 9 of 33 
 

Disinfection System 

 

Alternative C1A – Utilize Existing Chlorine Gas System with No Modifications 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes continuing to utilize the existing chlorine gas system within the 

existing chlorine room of the WTP Main Building.  The system will continue to operate 

as described previously in this memorandum. 

 

Disinfection 

 

The disinfection process will not be modified in this alternative.  The WTP will continue 

to inject gas into a sidestream of finished water and the resulting chlorinated solution will 

continue to be injected to the flocculation tank as well as the discharge piping from each 

of the filters. 

 

Building and Other 

 

No modifications will be completed to the WTP Main Building, chlorine room, or WTP 

site.  If any modifications are made to the chlorine room, it is assumed that the room and 

system must be brought up to current building codes.  The modifications associated with 

these requirements are described in Alternative C1B below. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

While this alternative has no capital cost for the District, it also provides no additional 

benefits for the treatment process.  Furthermore, this alternative does not address the fact 

that the current disinfection system does not meet current building codes or that it 

continues the use of gaseous chlorine, which does pose more significant health and safety 

risks when compared to other disinfection technologies. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

There is no capital cost associated with this alternative.  Operation and maintenance costs 

will also not change. 

 

Page 17 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 10 of 33 
 

Alternative C1B – Utilize Existing Chlorine Gas System with Modifications 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes utilizing chlorine gas disinfection but includes providing 

upgrades to the facility so that it meets current building and safety codes. 

 

Disinfection 

 

The disinfection process will not be modified in this alternative.  The WTP will continue 

to inject gas into a sidestream of finished water and the resulting chlorinated solution will 

continue to be injected to the flocculation tank as well as the discharge piping from each 

of the filters. 

 

Building and Other 

 

As mentioned above, the chlorine room and associated equipment does not meet current 

building and safety codes for use and/or storage of gaseous chlorine.  This alternative 

includes modifications to the existing facility so that it does meet current code 

requirements.  Additional information on these code requirements and regulations is 

provided in Exhibit C, and the proposed modifications to the facility are summarized 

below: 

 

● Replace the existing mechanical ventilation equipment and ensure that this 

equipment is connected to the auxiliary power source. 

 

● Replace the existing fire alarm system and install a fire suppression 

system within the chorine room. 

 

● Replace the chlorine gas detection and alarm system. 

 

● Spare cylinders not in use shall be stored within an approved storage 

cabinet and this cabinet shall be anchored to the wall. 

 

● Reconfiguration of the room to allow for anchoring gas cylinders in use to 

the wall. 

 

● Investigate the existing electrical power distribution in the chlorine room 

and provide additional safeguards. 

 

Page 18 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 11 of 33 
 

● Prepare and store a Hazardous Materials Management Plan and Hazardous 

Materials Inventory Sheet. 

 

New ventilation (HVAC) equipment will be installed to ensure that it provides the 

required number of air changes per hour and is connected to the auxiliary power source 

so the system can remain in operation during an interruption in the primary power 

service.  The fire alarm and suppression system will be replaced with new technology and 

will include both heat and smoke detection.  The fire suppression system will include an 

automatic sprinkler system.  The gas detection and alarm system will be replaced with 

new technology and will act to warn the WTP staff if chlorine gas is detected.  This alarm 

will be connected to the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system to 

warn the staff if they are not at the facility, and various visual and audible alarms will be 

provided at the WTP to notify staff. 

 

If the modifications summarized above are installed, the existing facility will meet 

current codes for the use and storage of gaseous chlorine for disinfection. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that no significant structural modifications are needed 

and the system can remain in place within the existing chlorine room.  Another advantage 

is that the staff is familiar with disinfection via gaseous chlorine and no additional 

training or experience is required.  One disadvantage to this alternative is that it utilizes 

gaseous chlorine, which does pose more significant health and safety risks when 

compared to other disinfection technologies. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

The estimated cost to provide the items described above is $271,000 including 

contingency (25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project 

administration (30 percent).  The budget line item for the design/project administration 

for this alternative is slightly larger than typical planning values because the fire 

suppression and alarm system must be designed by a firm specializing in this equipment.  

A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B. 

 

Page 19 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 12 of 33 
 

Alternative C1C – Utilize New Chlorine Gas System within a New Building 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes utilizing chlorine gas disinfection that will be located within a 

new separate building.  The existing chlorine disinfection equipment will be removed 

from service. 

 

Disinfection 

 

The disinfection process will not be modified in this alternative.  The WTP will continue 

to inject gas into a sidestream of finished water and the resulting chlorinated solution will 

continue to be injected to the flocculation tank as well as the discharge piping from each 

of the filters. 

 

Building and Other 

 

While Alternative C1B included modifying the existing chlorine room at the WTP, 

Alternative C1C includes installing new chlorine gas equipment within a new separate 

building.  The new building would be approximately 140 sf and could be located as 

shown on Figure A-5 in Exhibit A.  The building would be constructed from CMU or 

other noncombustible materials and would include new mechanical ventilation 

equipment, a new fire alarm system, a fire suppression (sprinkler) system, gas detection 

system with audible and visual alarms, and sufficient space to provide storage for gas 

cylinders that meets current building and safety codes.  The building would also include 

some space for miscellaneous storage. 

 

The new facility will be subject to all applicable stormwater requirements for 

construction of new buildings and the addition of new asphalt pavement.  The 

construction of a new building adjacent to the existing WTP would be subject to the 

stipulations listed by Whatcom County for the Lake Whatcom Watershed.  These 

requirements will include the need to provide either full infiltration on site or advanced 

treatment for phosphorous removal.  Design of the required stormwater facilities will be 

provided once the building footprint and paving have been finalized, but a budgetary 

estimate for the anticipated requirements has been included with the alternative cost 

estimate included in Exhibit B.  In addition, it should be noted that these regulations 

restrict clearing of the site so that only 35 percent of the existing tree canopy can be 

cleared. 

 

It is important to note that this alternative will require additional design and coordination 

with various stakeholders, one of which includes the Sudden Valley Community 

Page 20 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 13 of 33 
 

Association (SVCA).  The SVCA owns much of the property adjacent to the WTP and 

would need to be consulted prior to implementation of any of the alternatives discussed in 

this memorandum.  Furthermore, the District must consider that the property adjacent to 

the WTP is a public park with waterfront access and use of this public space will likely 

need to be maintained at all times.  Other stakeholders include neighboring residential 

landowners and utility providers serving the area. 

 

This additional equipment will increase the electrical load on the facility to accommodate 

the new building lighting, heating equipment, and fire alarm system.  The existing circuit 

that feeds the chlorine room ventilation equipment will be extended to the new building, 

but additional circuits will be required for new lighting and heating equipment.  For the 

purposes of this investigation, it is assumed that the existing electrical service to the site 

is sufficient to accommodate the proposed loads and that a new electrical supply will be 

sub-fed from the existing Finished Water Pump Building.  A formal electrical analysis 

should be completed once the size of the proposed electrical loads are defined to confirm 

this assumption. 

 

This alternative will require modifications to the District’s existing SCADA system.  The 

new fire and gas alarm signals can be incorporated into the District’s existing SCADA 

system and will allow for monitoring and control of the new system per the District’s 

protocols. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that the proposed building and chemical delivery 

system will be designed to current building codes regarding use of chlorine gas.  Another 

advantage is that the existing chlorine room will become available for use as storage or 

other desired uses.  Disadvantages to this alternative are that it will require construction 

of a new building and that this alternative will continue the use of gaseous chlorine, 

which does pose more significant health and safety risks when compared to other 

disinfection technologies. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

The estimated cost to provide the items described above is $725,000 including 

contingency (25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project 

administration (30 percent).  The budget line item for the design/project administration 

for this alternative is slightly larger than typical planning values because the fire 

suppression and alarm system must be designed by a firm specializing in this equipment.  

A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B. 

 

Page 21 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 14 of 33 
 

Alternative C2 – On-Site Generation of Hypochlorite 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes removing the existing chlorine gas equipment from service and 

installing new on-site hypochlorite generation equipment within a new building. 

 

Disinfection 

 

For this alternative, the existing gas chlorination equipment will be removed and will be 

replaced with an on-site hypochlorite generation system. 

 

On-site hypochlorite generation (OSHG) is commonly used to generate a dosing solution 

(usually 0.8 percent) which is then injected into the filtered water either directly or via 

sidestream predilution.  The 0.8 percent solution is dilute enough that it is not considered 

a hazardous material.  OSHGs create hypochlorite by applying an electrical current 

across a saturated brine (salt) solution, which generates both the desired hypochlorite as 

well as hydrogen gas.  OSHG systems are commonly used at WTPs across the 

Pacific Northwest and typically include the following components: 

 

● Electrolytic Cells 

● Hydrogen Gas Blower 

● Water Softening System 

● Brine Storage Saturator and Dosing System 

● Hypochlorite Storage 

● Hypochlorite Metering Pump Equipment 

● Controls, Instrumentation, and Telemetry Equipment 

 

Several manufacturers have streamlined the OSHG process and provide package systems 

that include many of the components listed above on a common skid/frame which 

simplifies the installation and design process.  A schematic diagram of a typical OSHG 

system and a photo of one such system provided by UGSI/PSI is included as Figure A-6 

in Exhibit A. 

 

Table 3 highlights the design criteria for the proposed OSHG system at both typical and 

design flow values. 

 

Page 22 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 15 of 33 
 

TABLE 3 

 

OSHG Design Criteria 

 

Parameter Typical Flow Design Flow 

Flow (gpm) 700 1,400 

Target Chorine Residual (mg/L, as Cl) 1.2 1.2 

Chlorine Consumption (lb/d) 10.1 20.3 

Hypochlorite Consumption (gpd) 158.4 316.7 

Salt Consumption (lb/d) (1) 30.4 60.8 

Power Consumption (kWh/d) (2) 20.3 40.5 
(1) Using a typical conversion rate of 3 pounds of salt per pound of chlorine. 

(2) Using a typical conversion rate of 2 kilowatt-hours (kWh) per pound of 

chorine. 

 

Even though the WTP operates almost exclusively at 700 gpm, the proposed OSHG 

system will be capable of providing up to 25 pounds of chlorine per day, which is 

sufficient for the design flow listed in Table 3. 

 

A typical OSHG system has a footprint of approximately 8 sf (2′ x 4′).  This footprint is 

for the OSHG system only and does not account for additional appurtenances such as the 

brine storage tank, hypochlorite storage tank, or hypochlorite metering pump equipment.  

The system will include a hydrogen blower to remove hydrogen gas created as part of the 

electrolysis process and will also include a hydrogen gas sensor/alarm equipment.  The 

water softener system will be provided by the OSHG manufacturer, which will further 

optimize the installation process.  This softener will remove various chemical 

ions/compounds to optimize the water chemistry for electrolysis.  A softener system 

typically consists of a brine storage tank (less than 100 gallons) from which saturated 

brine solution is dosed into the OSHG system.  The saturated brine solution is created by 

combining salt granules/pellets with potable water within the brine storage tank.  

Although mechanical systems exist for handling salt addition to the brine tank, these 

systems are likely cost-prohibitive for the current and projected salt consumption listed in 

Table 3 (up to 60 pounds per day).  In this alternative, a mechanical brine management 

system is not included, and this alternative assumes that staff will manually add 

approximately one bag of salt (50 pounds) to the brine storage tank every 1 to 2 days. 

 

Once hypochlorite solution is generated, it is temporarily stored prior to being injected 

into the treatment process using the chemical metering pumps.  Most manufacturers 

recommend that up to 2 days of solution be stored within this tank to optimize the space 

required for the system with the capital cost for the system.  Given the proposed 

hypochlorite solution consumption listed in Table 3, the hypochlorite storage tank should 

Page 23 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 16 of 33 
 

have a capacity of at least 700 gallons.  This tank can be provided by the OSHG 

manufacturer as part of the equipment package or can be provided separately.  The 

hypochlorite storage tank would feed a set of chemical metering pumps that would inject 

the solution to the filtered water piping upstream of the clearwell.  For this application, a 

duplex metering pump skid is recommended for reliability and redundancy.  The 

metering pumps can be diaphragm style and should have a pumping capacity of 

approximately 15 gallons per hour (gph), which would accommodate both the typical and 

design flows.  If desired, the OSHG manufacturer can provide a pumping skid to deliver 

the chlorine solution to the injection location.  Lastly, the proposed system would include 

its own control panel that can be used to control and monitor the equipment.  This control 

panel will connect to the District’s SCADA system so that the WTP staff can be notified 

of the operating conditions and any alarms or faults as they occur. 

 

Building and Other 

 

The equipment listed above will not fit within the existing WTP footprint and as such, 

must be installed within a new separate building.  To accommodate the new equipment, 

storage tank, and supporting components, the new building should be approximately 

300 to 350 sf and could be located as shown on Figure A-7 in Exhibit A.  The building 

would be constructed from CMU or other noncombustible materials and would include 

new heating and mechanical ventilation equipment.  It should be noted that the building 

shown on Figure A-7 is currently designed to accommodate only the proposed OSHG 

equipment; however, as noted in previous technical memoranda (Technical Memoranda 

20434-4 and 20434-5), it may be beneficial to expand the size of the proposed building to 

accommodate other treatment equipment currently located within the WTP Main 

Building.  Relocating some of this existing equipment would free up space in the existing 

building, which could be used for additional storage, laboratory space, or construction of 

an enclosed electrical room which would provide separation between the wet treatment 

equipment and the sensitive electrical equipment.  Considerations for the final building 

size proposed in this alternative should be considered in the context of other changes 

desired for the WTP. 

 

Site improvements with this alternative include some additional asphalt paving to 

improve access to the proposed building. 

 

Similar to Alternative C1, this alternative will be subject to all applicable stormwater 

requirements for construction of new buildings and will require coordination with various 

stakeholders, most prominently the SCVA. 

 

This additional equipment will increase the electrical load on the facility to accommodate 

the new building heating equipment, new chlorine equipment, and supporting 

Page 24 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 17 of 33 
 

appurtenances.  Both 480- and 120-volt circuits are required for operation of the OSHG 

system, both of which are available at the WTP.  For the purposes of this investigation, it 

is assumed that the existing electrical service to the site is sufficient to accommodate the 

proposed loads and that a new electrical supply will be sub-fed from the existing Finished 

Water Pump Building.  A formal electrical analysis should be completed once the size of 

the proposed electrical loads are defined to confirm this assumption. 

 

This alternative will require modifications to the District’s existing SCADA system.  The 

new fire and gas alarm signals can be incorporated into the District’s existing SCADA 

system and will allow for monitoring and control of the new system per the District’s 

protocols. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One significant advantage to this alternative is that the District can produce their own 

hypochlorite solution without the safety concerns associated with use of gaseous chlorine.  

One disadvantage of this alternative is the high capital cost for required equipment and 

the additional operation and maintenance requirements associated with manual addition 

of salt to the brine storage tank. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

The estimated cost to provide the items described above is $1,511,000 including 

contingency (25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project 

administration (25 percent).  A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in 

Exhibit B. 

 

Alternative C3 – Commercial Delivery of Sodium Hypochlorite 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes removing the existing chlorine gas equipment from service and 

installing new hypochlorite storage and dosing equipment within a new building.  

Hypochlorite solution would be delivered by a commercial vendor. 

 

Disinfection 

 

For this alternative, the existing gas chlorination equipment will be removed and will be 

replaced with a hypochlorite storage and dosing system. 

 

Page 25 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 18 of 33 
 

Hypochlorite would be delivered by a commercial vendor from a distribution facility to 

the WTP.  Sodium hypochlorite is commercially available as a 12.5 percent solution and 

is used at water treatment facilities throughout Washington State.  It is important to note 

that 12.5 percent solution is considered a hazardous material and depending on the 

volume maintained on site, storage of this solution would incur additional safety 

considerations for operations and building equipment.  The solution is delivered via a 

large tanker truck and is pumped from the truck to the storage vessel.  Once delivered, the 

owner can either utilize the solution directly or can further dilute the solution until it 

reaches the desired concentration.  Hypochlorite naturally degrades with time, and the 

rate of degradation is more significant for stronger solutions.  As such, it is best if the 

hypochlorite within the storage tank is maintained at a solution strength of 5 percent or 

below. 

 

Table 4 summarizes the approximate consumption of solution at various solution 

strengths. 

 

TABLE 4 

 

Alternative CC3 Chlorine Consumption 

 

Parameter 12.5% 5.0% 0.08% 

Flow 

(gpm) 

Typical 

(700) 

Design 

(1,400) 

Typical 

(700) 

Design 

(1,400) 

Typical 

(700) 

Design 

(1,400) 

Chlorine Consumption (lb/d) 10 20 10 20 10 20 

Solution Consumption (gpd) 10 20 25 50 158 316 

 

In lieu of bulk delivery, the District can purchase 55-gallon drums or 300-gallon 

mini-totes of 12.5 percent solution and manually transfer them to the dosing tank or feed 

directly from the container. 

 

For this alternative, it is assumed that the District will procure a small to moderate 

volume of 12.5 percent sodium hypochlorite (less than 500 gallons), then manually add 

the desired volume of 12.5 percent solution to a new large-volume dosing tank, then 

dilute with a known volume of water in order to achieve the desired dosing concentration. 

 

Building and Other 

 

The equipment required for bulk hypochlorite will not fit within the existing WTP 

footprint and as such, must be installed within a new separate building.  To accommodate 

the new equipment, storage tank, and supporting components, the new building should be 

approximately 200 to 250 sf and could be located as shown on Figure A-8 in Exhibit A.  

Page 26 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 19 of 33 
 

The building would be constructed from CMU or other noncombustible materials and 

would include new heating and mechanical ventilation equipment.  It should be noted that 

the building shown on Figure A-8 is currently designed to accommodate only the 

proposed hypochlorite storage and dosing equipment; however, as noted in previous 

technical memoranda (Technical Memoranda 20434-4 and 20434-5), it may be beneficial 

to expand the size of the proposed building to accommodate other treatment equipment 

currently located within the WTP Main Building.  Relocating some of this existing 

equipment would free up space in the existing building, which could be used for 

additional storage, laboratory space, or construction of an enclosed electrical room which 

would provide separation between the wet treatment equipment and the sensitive 

electrical equipment.  Considerations for the final building size proposed in this 

alternative should be considered in the context of other changes desired for the WTP. 

 

It is important to note that the type and volume of chemical stored will significantly 

impact the safety system required for the building.  Depending on the chemical and its 

strength, a fire sprinkler system may or may not be required.  According to current 

building and fire codes, for a solution strength between 5 and 15 percent, storage of less 

than 500 gallons of sodium hypochlorite will result in a building occupancy rating of F-1, 

which does not require installation of a fire suppression (alarm and sprinkler) system.  If 

more than 500 gallons of this solution are stored on site, then the occupancy rating will 

increase to H-4, which will require installation of a fire suppression system.  If the 

solution strength is less than 5 percent, this solution is not considered hazardous, toxic, or 

corrosive, the building occupancy rating would be F-1, and a fire suppression system is 

not required.  Furthermore, the only limitations on the maximum storage volume of this 

solution are those of the building that will house the storage container. 

 

Site improvements with this alternative include some additional asphalt paving to 

improve access to the proposed building. 

 

Similar to Alternative C1, this alternative will be subject to all applicable stormwater 

requirements for construction of new buildings and will require coordination with various 

stakeholders, most prominently the SCVA. 

 

This additional equipment will increase the electrical load on the facility to accommodate 

the new building heating equipment, new chlorine equipment, and supporting 

appurtenances.  For the purposes of this investigation, it is assumed that the existing 

electrical service to the site is sufficient to accommodate the proposed loads and that a 

new electrical supply will be sub-fed from the existing Finished Water Pump Building.  

A formal electrical analysis should be completed once the size of the proposed electrical 

loads are defined to confirm this assumption. 

 

Page 27 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 20 of 33 
 

This alternative will require modifications to the District’s existing SCADA system and 

will allow for monitoring and control of the new system per the District’s protocols. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that the existing chlorine room will become available 

for use as storage or other desired uses and that the safety risks associated with gaseous 

chlorine will be eliminated.  Furthermore, this alternative will have less operational and 

maintenance requirements than OSHG and utilizes less space which will allow for 

construction of a smaller building.  Disadvantages to this alternative are that it will 

require construction of a new building as well as continuous additional coordination with 

commercial vendors to ensure a sufficient supply of hypochlorite is available at all times. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately $836,000, including contingency 

(25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project administration 

(25 percent).  A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B.  The 

cost for 12.5 percent sodium hypochlorite is between $2.20 (bulk) and $3.00 (drums and 

totes) per gallon.  This ongoing operational expense must be considered when comparing 

disinfection alternatives and is addressed in subsequent sections of this memorandum. 

 

CT System 

 

Current drinking water regulations required the WTP to meet disinfection criteria using 

CT calculations.  CT is calculated using the maximum daily peak hour flow, the contact 

tank volume, the baffling efficiency, and the minimum daily chlorine residual as 

measured prior to entry into the distribution system.  This calculated value is then 

compared to the published regulatory CT value for a given temperature and pH.  The 

ratio of the CT provided to the CT required is called the inactivation ratio (IR), and for 

public water systems, the IR must be greater than 1 at all times. 

 

To determine whether the existing CT system is sufficient for both current and projected 

flows, Gray & Osborne conducted a sensitivity analysis.  The sensitivity analysis was 

performed by listing the existing CT values using current conditions, then changing one 

aspect of the CT calculation and comparing the results.  The changes investigated 

included raising the minimum water depth within the existing CCB, modifying the 

existing CCB to improve the baffling efficiency, raising the minimum chlorine residual, 

and expanding the CCB volume through modifications to the existing tank or 

construction of a new tank.  Table 5 highlights the information and results used for this 

analysis. 

Page 28 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 21 of 33 
 

 

TABLE 5 

 

CT Calculation Comparison 

 

Flow 

(gpm) 

CCB 

Volume 

(gal) (1) 

Baffling 

Efficiency (2) 

Contact 

Time 

(T, min) (3) 

Chlorine 

Residual 

(C, mg/L) (4) 

CT 

Provided (5) 

CT 

Required (6) 

Inactivation 

Ratio (7) 

Existing CCB 

700 155,000 0.3 66.4 0.9 59.8 60 1.00 

1,000 155,000 0.3 46.5 0.9 41.9 60 0.70 

1,400 155,000 0.3 33.2 0.9 29.9 60 0.50 

Higher Minimum Depth 

700 174,000 0.3 74.6 0.9 67.1 60 1.12 

1,000 174,000 0.3 52.2 0.9 47.0 60 0.78 

1,400 174,000 0.3 37.3 0.9 33.6 60 0.56 

Higher BE 

700 155,000 0.5 110.8 0.9 99.6 60 1.66 

1,000 155,000 0.5 77.5 0.9 69.8 60 1.16 

1,400 155,000 0.5 55.4 0.9 49.8 60 0.83 

Higher Chlorine Residual 

700 155,000 0.3 66.4 1.3 86.5 60 1.44 

1,000 155,000 0.3 46.5 1.3 60.5 60 1.00 

1,400 155,000 0.3 33.2 1.3 (8) 43.2 60 0.72 

Larger CCB (9) 

700 192,000 0.5 137.1 0.9 123.4 60 2.06 

1,000 192,000 0.5 96.0 0.9 86.4 60 1.44 

1,400 192,000 0.5 68.6 0.9 61.7 60 1.03 

(1) Assumes a minimum height of 16.5 feet and a value of 9,400 gallons per foot for the CCB. 

(2) Existing CCB BE is 0.3 as listed in the Tracer Study Report and the District’s current CT 

calculation. 

(3) Calculated as the CCB volume divided by the flow, multiplied by the baffling efficiency. 

(4) Historical daily minimum chlorine residual. 

(5) Calculated as the Contact Time multiplied by the Chlorine Residual. 

(6) Assumes 1.0-log inactivation of Giardia at a residual of 1.0 mg/L and a temperature of 

5 degrees Celsius. 

(7) Calculated as CT Provided divided by CT Required. 

(8) To achieve an IR of 1.0 at the design flow, a chlorine residual of approximately 1.8 mg/L would 

be required. 

(9) Assumes a total reservoir volume of 275,000 gallons and a minimum volume ratio of 70 percent – 

which matches the minimum volume ratio of the current CCB  

((16.5 feet ⁎ 9,400 gallons per foot)/(24 feet ⁎ 9,400 gallons per foot)).  Also assumes a BE of 0.5, 

which should be achievable with a new tank. 

 

Table 5 reveals the following conclusions: 

 

Page 29 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 22 of 33 
 

● The existing system is not sufficient using current operational parameters 

to provide the required CT for flows above 700 gpm. 

 

● Raising the minimum depth within the CCB from 16.5 to 18.5 feet would 

improve the CT provided, but still does not provide sufficient CT for 

flows greater than 800 gpm and provides significantly less operational 

flexibility due to the reduced operational volume utilized with the CCB. 

 

● Increasing the baffling efficiency to 0.5 through CCB modifications, along 

with a slight increase in chlorine residual, could provide sufficient CT for 

flows up to 1,400 gpm. 

 

● Increasing the chlorine residual to approximately 1.3 mg/L would provide 

sufficient CT for flows up to 1,000 gpm, but would result in increased gas 

consumption, which would in turn increase operational costs and gas 

cylinder replacement frequency.  Furthermore, increased chlorine levels 

could also lead to customer complaints. 

 

● Increasing the size of the CCB volume would provide sufficient CT for 

flows beyond 1,400 gpm. 

 

Given the conclusions listed above, it appears that modifying the existing CCB to 

improve the existing baffling efficiency and/or increasing the contact volume would be 

most successful at improving the District’s CT system.  Three alternatives for these 

modifications are discussed in more detail below. 

 

Alternative CCB1 – Rehabilitate Existing CCB 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes modifying the existing CCB with additional baffles. 

 

Chlorine Contact 

 

This alternative will include installation of additional baffles within the CCB.  The 

existing CCB has three steel baffle plates located on the tank interior as shown on 

Figure A-2 in Exhibit A.  The baffles promote a serpentine flow through the tank which 

extends the residence time and increases the contact time value.  Given the current baffle 

location and tank diameter, two alternatives are feasible and both of these options are 

shown on Figure A-9 in Exhibit A.  The baffles can be either welded steel to match the 

existing units, or can be Hypalon® or other synthetic material.  For the purposes of this 

Page 30 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 23 of 33 
 

investigation, it is assumed the new Hypalon baffles will be installed.  This will require 

that the CCB be taken offline, drained, and cleaned prior to installation.  Installation will 

include attachment of cables at the top of the tank to support the baffle clips and 

bottom/wall brackets that will provide a watertight seal with the CCB floor plate.  A tight 

seal is critical to ensure that all water follows the desired path. 

 

If the CCB is taken offline, accommodations for temporary CT must be provided during 

the construction period, which could include temporary tankage, assembly of a temporary 

CT piping system, or water service via the existing intertie with the City of Bellingham.  

For a temporary tank, approximately 300,000 gallons of storage would be required, while 

the length of temporary pipe required would depend upon the pipe diameter.  For 

example, if 18-inch pipe is provided, at least 2,150 feet of pipe would be necessary.  This 

length assumes a required CT value of 60, a flow of 700 gpm, and a target chlorine 

residual of 1.0 mg/L.  Larger-diameter pipe would require less piping length while 

smaller-diameter pipe would require more piping length.  In addition to these 

accommodations, temporary chlorine injection and analysis piping would also need to be 

provided.  To reduce the volume of temporary CT equipment required, it would be 

beneficial to construct the CCB modifications during the winter months when system 

demand is low.  Furthermore, any further reduction in operational flow below 700 gpm 

would help reduce the required CT volume. 

 

Given the numerous complexities of providing temporary CT piping at the WTP which 

include a lack of available adjacent private land to install the piping, the public nature of 

the adjacent park, the temporary modifications that would be required to existing 

equipment, safety equipment, and additional monitoring that would be required as well as 

potential permitting and approval that would be required from DOH, if this alternative is 

selected we suggest utilizing the existing intertie with the City of Bellingham to provide 

water service to the South Shore system during construction.  The modifications listed 

above could likely be completed in 2 to 3 months, which would limit the cost of 

procuring water service from the City. 

 

At this point in time, it is difficult to know what the resulting baffling efficiency will be if 

modifications to the CCB are enacted.  As part of the tracer study project referenced 

above, Gray & Osborne analyzed the baffling efficiency for four circular baffled tanks 

and the highest baffling efficiency identified was 0.6.  The final report associated with 

this tracer study project (Summary Report of State-Wide Tracer Study Project, 

Gray & Osborne, 2017) found that cross-sectional velocity was the best value to estimate 

the anticipated BE.  The report noted that BE was related to cross-sectional velocity 

through the equation y = 1.9141x(0.3002), where x is the cross-sectional velocity and y is 

the baffling efficiency.  For the existing CCB, using this equation and a range of 

cross-sectional velocities between 0.007 and 0.012 feet per second (fps) (as calculated for 

Page 31 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 24 of 33 
 

the minimum and maximum potential cross-sectional areas), the predicted BE is between 

0.43 and 0.51.  This range of values is above the currently utilized value of 0.3 and below 

the previously assumed value of 0.7. 

 

Using the equation above, a cross-sectional velocity of 0.11 fps should provide a BE of 

0.5 and given the minimum operational flow of 700 gpm, the maximum cross-sectional 

area to achieve this desired velocity is 140 sf.  If this area is provided as part of the design 

for a new CCB, we believe that the desired BE of 0.5 is achievable.  Both of the options 

shown on Figure A-9 provide cross-sectional velocities that should achieve at least the 

desired BE of 0.5 at all flows up to the design flow of 1,400 gpm. 

 

Technical Memorandum 20434-2 provided an assessment of the existing CCB coating 

system, and this memorandum concluded that the existing coating system should be 

removed and a new coating system applied within 5 years to address areas of coating 

stress, fatigue, and failure.  Furthermore, Technical Memorandum 20434-2 provided 

additional recommendations including seal welding between the roof rafters and roof 

plates and installing additional hatches, instrumentation, and safety appurtenances to 

improve the functionality of the tank and to simplify operation and maintenance 

activities.  Because the existing CCB will be taken offline for modifications and will 

continue to be used to provide CT volume, the recommendations listed within Technical 

Memorandum 20434-2 are included with this alternative. 

 

In addition to the improvements listed above, the District may consider expanding their 

CT calculation to include the existing clearwell, which is currently not included in the CT 

calculations.  Given the current volumes and operational parameters, it is estimated that 

including the unbaffled clearwell could provide an additional 1 to 2 minutes of contact 

time, which would improve the IR by less than 0.1.  This alternative would require 

modification of the District’s existing CT calculations to accommodate the new proposed 

BE value.  A tracer study should be performed to verify the baffling efficiency of the 

modified CT system. 

 

Building and Other 

 

No modifications to the existing WTP site and/or building are proposed as part of this 

alternative. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that the existing tank can be reused which will reduce 

the capital cost of the project.  A second advantage is that the modification period would 

also be a good time to address the coating system – which was recommended for 

Page 32 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 25 of 33 
 

replacement in Technical Memorandum 20434-2.  Combining these two tasks as a single 

project will reduce the overall downtime for the CCB.  One disadvantage to this 

alternative is that during construction the CCB must be taken out of service, and during 

this time period the District must provide alternative temporary CT facilities or purchase 

water from the City of Bellingham. 

 

Cost Estimate 

 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately $1,199,000, including contingency 

(25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project administration 

(25 percent).  A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B.  It is 

important to note that this cost estimate includes a budget line item for service from the 

City of Bellingham, but that this amount is subject to change based on negotiations for 

service with the City. 

 

Alternative CCB2 – Construct New Replacement CCB 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes construction of a new CCB to replace the existing steel tank. 

 

Chlorine Contact 

 

To ensure sufficient CT for the WTP, it is advantageous to provide a new tank larger than 

the existing tank.  Given the analysis summarized in Table 5, it appears that a tank 

volume of 300,000 gallons should be sufficient to provide CT up to the design flow of 

1,400 gpm with sufficient redundancy. 

 

While precast concrete tanks offer significant value for capital and installation costs, they 

are not readily available in the desired volume.  As such, this alternative assumes that a 

new welded steel reservoir will be constructed.  The tank is proposed for the location 

shown on Figure A-10 in Exhibit A and would have the design criteria listed in Table 6.  

The proposed CCB would include appurtenances such as access ladders and hatches, 

instrumentation, and would be coated both on the interior and exterior surfaces.  This 

alternative would allow the existing CCB to remain in service at all times – which would 

eliminate the need for temporary CT volume. 

 

Page 33 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 26 of 33 
 

TABLE 6 

 

Alternative CCB2 Proposed Design Criteria 

 

Parameter Value 

Type Circular, Welded Steel 

Diameter (ft) 44 

Base Elevation (ft) 345.0 (1) 

Overflow Elevation (ft) 372.0 

Volume (gal) 307,000 

Gallons per Foot 11,373 

Inlet 12-Inch Perforated Riser 

Outlet 12-Inch Perforated Riser 

Interior Baffles 7, Hypalon 

Baffling Efficiency 0.5 

Instrumentation Ultrasonic Level Sensor (2x) 

 Float Switch (2x) 

 Intrusion Switch 
(1) Approximate and based on estimates of surrounding grades.  Not 

based on actual survey information. 

 

This alternative would require modification of the District’s existing CT calculations to 

include the new tank volume.  Additionally, a tracer study should be performed to verify 

the baffling efficiency of the new tank as well as the entire CT system. 

 

Building and Other 

 

Site improvements included with this alternative include grading and earthwork required 

to create a flat and suitable area for the proposed CCB.  Prior to construction of the 

proposed CCB, a thorough geotechnical investigation should be completed in order to 

ensure suitable hillside stability south of the proposed tank.  This geotechnical 

investigation will also identify whether or not a retaining wall is recommended.  Given 

the slope of the adjacent terrain, a retaining wall may be required to provide suitable 

slope stabilization.  For the purposes of this investigation, it is assumed that a retaining 

wall is not required for construction of the new CCB, and that only basic earthwork and 

grading are required. 

 

If a new CCB is constructed, the existing CCB could be used for other purposes.  This 

could include additional CT storage, filter backwash and recycle storage, or 

emergency/auxiliary equalization storage.  The existing CCB could be demolished and 

removed; however, to provide suitable redundancy in the event that the new CCB must 

Page 34 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 27 of 33 
 

be taken offline for maintenance, recoating, or from damage, we recommend that the 

District maintain the structure in usable condition.  For the purposes of this analysis, this 

alternative assumes that the existing CCB will be maintained and repurposed or left 

empty as a redundant tank.  It is important to note that Technical Memorandum 20434-2 

noted various items on the existing CCB that should be addressed if the tank is to be 

utilized for service; however, these improvements are not included in this alternative.  

Additionally, the new CCB could be constructed while the existing CCB remains in 

service.  This would eliminate the need to provide temporary CT facilities and would 

reduce the operational impact on District staff. 

 

The new CCB will be subject to all applicable stormwater requirements for construction 

of new buildings and the addition of new asphalt pavement.  The construction of a new 

building adjacent to the existing WTP would be subject to the stipulations listed by 

Whatcom County for the Lake Whatcom Watershed.  These requirements will include the 

need to provide either full infiltration on site or advanced treatment for phosphorous 

removal.  Design of the required stormwater facilities will be provided once the building 

footprint and paving have been finalized, but a budgetary estimate for the anticipated 

requirements has been included with the alternative cost estimate included in Exhibit B.  

In addition, it should be noted that these regulations restrict clearing of the site so that 

only 35 percent of the existing tree canopy can be cleared. 

 

It is important to note that this alternative will require additional design and coordination 

with various stakeholders, one of which includes the SVCA.  The SVCA owns much of 

the property adjacent to the WTP and would need to be consulted prior to implementation 

of any of the alternatives discussed in this memorandum.  Furthermore, the District must 

consider that the property adjacent to the WTP is a public park with waterfront access 

and use of this public space will likely need to be maintained at all times.  Other 

stakeholders include neighboring residential landowners and utility providers serving the 

area. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that the existing tank can remain in service during 

construction of the new tank.  This eliminates the need to provide temporary CT facilities 

during modification/construction of a new tank.  Furthermore, this alternative would 

allow the District to utilize the existing CCB for other treatment processes.  This could 

include providing additional CT, backwash storage and recycle volume, or temporary 

equalization volume.  The primary disadvantage of this alternative is its high capital cost, 

and the need to acquire or utilize property not owned by the District. 

 

Page 35 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 28 of 33 
 

Cost Estimate 

 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately $1,671,000, including contingency 

(25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project administration 

(25 percent).  A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B. 

 

Alternative CCB3 – Construct New CCB to Supplement the Existing CCB 

 

General 

 

This alternative includes construction of a new smaller CCB to provide additional CT 

volume that will accommodate the full design flow of 1,400 gpm. 

 

Chlorine Contact 

 

As shown in Table 5, the existing CCB does not provide sufficient CT volume for the 

design flow of 1,400 gpm.  This alternative includes construction of a smaller 

supplementary tank that will provide the additional CT volume necessary to 

accommodate the design flow.  Design criteria for a tank that will meet the CT 

requirements is provided in Table 7 and a location for the proposed tank is provided on 

Figure A-11 in Exhibit A. 

 

TABLE 7 

 

Alternative CCB3 Proposed Design Criteria 

 

Parameter Value 

Type Circular, Precast Concrete 

Diameter (ft) 26 

Base Elevation (ft) 336.0 (1) 

Overflow Elevation (ft) 360.0 

Volume (gal) 95,300 

Gallons per Foot 3,970 

Inlet 12-Inch Perforated Riser 

Outlet 12-Inch Perforated Riser 

Interior Baffles 5, Hypalon 

Instrumentation Ultrasonic Level Sensor (2x) 

 Float Switch (2x) 

 Intrusion Switch 
(1) Proposed tank should match the hydraulic grade line of the 

existing CCB. 

Page 36 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 29 of 33 
 

 

A precast concrete tank was selected for this alternative because it is a very cost-effective 

solution for potable water storage for a reservoir of this size.  Tank rings are cast on site 

starting at the base using slipforms, then these forms are pulled upward to cast successive 

rings until the desired height is achieved.  Once the tank is cast, the baffles can be 

installed, the tank cleaned and disinfected after which it can be placed into service.  This 

alternative would allow the existing CCB to remain in service at all times – which would 

eliminate the need for temporary CT volume. 

 

This alternative would require modification of the District’s existing CT calculations to 

include the new tank volume.  Additionally, a tracer study should be performed to verify 

the baffling efficiency of the new tank as well as the entire CT system. 

 

Building and Other 

 

The site improvements for this alternative are very similar to those described in 

Alternative C2 for the new larger replacement tank.  The primary difference is that for 

this alternative, the scale and area affected by the clearing, grading, and earthwork is 

smaller than that required for Alternative C2. 

 

Additionally, the recommendations for the existing CCB provided in Technical 

Memorandum 20434-2 are also included with this alternative.  As with 

Alternative CCB1, temporary water service must be acquired from the City of 

Bellingham during the period of time that the existing CCB is offline for modifications 

because the tank proposed as part of this alternative is not large enough to provide 

sufficient CT volume prior to entry into the distribution system. 

 

Advantages and Disadvantages 

 

One advantage to this alternative is that the existing tank can remain in service during 

construction of the new tank.  This eliminates the need to provide temporary CT facilities 

during modification/construction of a new tank.  Another advantage is that the tank is 

smaller and can be constructed from concrete – both of which should reduce the level of 

maintenance required for the tank.  The primary disadvantage of this alternative is the 

need to acquire or utilize property not owned by the District and the requirement to 

procure water from the City of Bellingham during modification to the existing CCB. 

 

Page 37 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 30 of 33 
 

Cost Estimate 

 

This alternative is estimated to cost approximately $1,794,000, including contingency 

(25 percent), Washington State sales tax (9.0 percent), and design/project administration 

(25 percent).  A budgetary cost estimate for this alternative is provided in Exhibit B. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The alternatives described above provide various options for modifications to the WTP’s 

existing chlorine disinfection equipment as well as the CCB which is used to provide CT 

volume.  The alternatives described above are summarized and analyzed below. 

 

Alternative Summary 

 

Each of the alternatives are briefly described below, and Table 8 provides a summary and 

comparison for the various alternatives. 

 

Disinfection System 

 

Alternative C1A – Utilize Existing Chlorine Gas System with No Modifications 

 

This alternative includes utilizing the existing chlorine gas system in the existing chlorine 

room with no modifications. 

 

Alternative C1B – Utilize Existing Chlorine Gas System with Modifications 

 

This alternative includes utilizing the existing chlorine gas disinfection system within the 

existing chlorine room, but also includes building modifications that will bring the 

facility up to current building codes. 

 

Alternative C1C – Utilize New Chlorine Gas System within a New Building 

 

This alterative includes installation of a new gas chlorine system inside a new separate 

building.  The existing chlorine gas equipment will be removed and the existing chlorine 

room will be repurposed. 

 

Alternative C2 – On-Site Generation of Hypochlorite 

 

This alternative includes installation of a new OSHG system within a new separate 

building.  The existing chlorine gas system will be removed from service and disinfection 

Page 38 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 31 of 33 
 

will be provided using 0.8 percent sodium hypochlorite.  The existing chlorine room will 

be repurposed. 

 

Alternative C3 – Commercial Delivery of Sodium Hypochlorite 

 

This alternative includes installation of a new sodium hypochlorite storage and dosing 

system within a new separate building.  The existing chlorine gas system will be removed 

from service and disinfection will be provided using less than 5 percent sodium 

hypochlorite.  The existing chlorine room will be repurposed. 

 

CT System 

 

Alternative CCB1 – Rehabilitation of Existing CCB 

 

This alternative includes modification of the existing CCB to include additional baffles in 

order to increase the BE to 0.5.  It also includes removal of the existing CCB coating 

system and application of a new coating system.  Temporary CT facilities must be 

provided during construction and a tracer study must be conducted after completion of 

the project to verify the new BE. 

 

Alternative CCB2 – Construction of a New Replacement 300,000-Gallon CCB 

 

This alternative includes construction of a new 300,000-gallon CCB which will replace 

the existing CCB.  The tank will be constructed adjacent to the existing tank and will be 

constructed from welded steel.  Once the new tank is completed, the existing tank can be 

rehabilitated and then repurposed. 

 

Alternative CCB3 – Construction of a New Supplemental 100,000-Gallon CCB 

 

This alternative includes construction of a new 100,000-gallon CCB that will increase the 

overall CT volume of the system and will supplement the existing CCB.  The tank will be 

constructed adjacent to the existing tank and will be constructed from precast concrete.  It 

also includes removal of the existing CCB coating system and application of a new 

coating system.  A tracer study must be completed on the new tank to verify the baffling 

efficiency and should additionally include a tracer assessment of the combined CT 

components (existing tank and new tank). 

 

 

Page 39 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 32 of 33 
 

TABLE 8 

 

Alternatives Summary 

 

Alt. Description 

Capital 

Cost 

O&M 

Cost Advantages Disadvantages 

C1A Chlorine Gas 

with No 

Modifications 

$0 $$ 
• No capital cost 

• Familiarity with process and equipment 

• Facilities not up to current codes 

• Maintains use of chlorine gas 

C1B Chlorine Gas 

with Some 

Modifications 

$271,000 $$ 
• Facilities brough up to current codes 

• Familiarity with process and equipment 

• Maintains use of chlorine gas 

C1C New Chlorine 

Gas in New 

Building 

$725,000 $$ 
• Facilities brough up to current codes 

• Familiarity with process and equipment 

• Maintains use of chlorine gas 

• Construction of new building required 

C2 On-Site 

Hypochlorite 

Generation 
$1,511,000 $$$ 

• Self-sufficient process 

• No longer use chlorine gas 

• New technology and equipment for 

District staff 

• Construction of new building required 

C3 Commercial 

Bulk 

Hypochlorite 

Delivery 

$836,000 $$ 

• Easy and low maintenance 

• No longer use chlorine gas 

• Rely on commercial vendors 

• Coordination for delivery 

• Ongoing operational expense 

• Construction of new building required 

CCB1 Rehabilitation 

of Existing 

CCB 

$1,199,000 — 
• Utilizes existing tank 

• Simple modifications 

• Temporary CT facilities must be 

provided 

CCB2 New Larger 

Replacement 

CCB 
$1,671,000 — 

• Temporary CT facilities not required 

• Allows for simple rehabilitation and 

repurposing of existing CCB 

• Provides operational flexibility 

• Construction of new tank required 

CCB3 New Smaller 

Supplemental 

CCB 
$1,794,000 — 

• Temporary CT facilities not required 

• Provides operational flexibility 

• Construction of new tank required 

• Temporary CT facilities must be 

provided 

Page 40 of 86



Technical Memorandum 20434-6 – Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis 

January 15, 2021 

Page 33 of 33 
 

Recommendations 

 

It is difficult to provide a disinfection recommendation without considering the other 

issues that are being considered at the treatment plant.  For example, if the District 

decides to relocate other components such as media filters or chemical delivery 

equipment into a new separate building, Alternatives C1, C2, and C3 become more 

favorable since construction of the facility required to house new filters or chemical 

delivery equipment can easily and cost-effectively be expanded to provide space and 

accommodations for new disinfection equipment.  This economy of scale when 

considering the modifications for the WTP can help drive the decision-making process. 

 

Consequently, the final filtration recommendation will be deferred until the summary 

report is prepared that contains all of the information in the various technical memoranda 

to provide an optimized recommendation for the entire filter plant to ensure the District’s 

goal of continuing to provide high-quality treated water for decades to come. 

 

For the CT system, we recommend that the District construct a new CCB 

(Alternative CCB2) that can provide sufficient CT for the proposed design flow 

(1,400 gpm).  Construction of the new tank would not require construction and operation 

of temporary CT facilities, can be completed with the WTP in operation, provides 

operational flexibility by providing a second redundant tank, and will allow the District to 

rehabilitate and repurpose the existing CCB as desired. 

 

 

Page 41 of 86



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

FIGURES 

  

Page 42 of 86



Page 1 of 11 

    
 

FIGURE A-1 

 

Chlorine Disinfection Equipment 

 

  

Page 43 of 86



Page 2 of 11 

 
 

FIGURE A-2 

 

Chlorine Contact Basin Plan 

 

Page 44 of 86



Page 3 of 11 

 
 

FIGURE A-3 

 

Chlorine Contact Basin Section 

 

  

Page 45 of 86



Page 4 of 11 

     
 

FIGURE A-4 

 

Chlorine Contact Basin Photograph 

 

  

Page 46 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-5

ALTERNATIVE C1C -  CHLORINE BUILDING

MODIFIED SITE PLAN

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

Page 47 of 86



Page 6 of 11 

 
 

 
Courtesy of UGSI/PSI 

 

FIGURE A-6 

 

UGSI/PSI OSHG System 

 

  

Page 48 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-7

ALTERNATIVE C2 - NEW CHLORINE BUILDING

MODIFIED SITE PLAN

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

Page 49 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-8

ALTERNATIVE C3 - NEW CHLORINE STORAGE BUILDING

MODIFIED SITE PLAN

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

Page 50 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-9

ALTERNATIVE CCB-1

MODIFIED CCB CONFIGURATIONS

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

BAFFLE OPTION 1

BAFFLE OPTION 2

Page 51 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-10

ALTERNATIVE CCB-2 SITE PLAN

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

Page 52 of 86



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND

SEWER DISTRICT

FIGURE A-11

ALTERNATIVE CCB-3 SITE PLAN

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 20434-6

DISINFECTION SYSTEMS ANALYSIS

Page 53 of 86



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

RECOMMENDED ALTERNATIVE COST ESTIMATES 

  

Page 54 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 13,000$          13,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 10,000$          10,000$          
3 Hazardous Materials Plans 1 LS 15,000$          15,000$          
4 Fire Alarm and Supression System 1 LS 25,000$          25,000$          
5 HVAC Improvements 1 LS 20,000$          20,000$          
6 Miscellaneous Room Improvements 1 LS 10,000$          10,000$          
7 Gas Storage Equipment 1 LS 5,000$            5,000$            
8 Gas Detection Equipment 1 LS 15,000$          15,000$          
9 Electrical Improvements 1 LS 30,000$          30,000$          

10 Telemetry / SCADA Improvements 1 LS 10,000$          10,000$          

153,000$        
38,300$          

191,300$        
17,200$          

208,500$        
62,600$          

271,000$        

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (30.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and is 
provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative C1B - Utilize Existing Chlorine Equipment with Chlorine Room Modifications

Page 55 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 34,000$         34,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
3 Hazardous Materials Plan 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
4 Site Improvements 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
5 Stormwater Improvements 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
6 New Building 150 SF 800$              120,000$        
7 Gas Disinfection Equipment 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
8 Gas Sensing Equipment 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
9 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 40,000$         40,000$          

10 HVAC Modifications 1 LS 35,000$         35,000$          
11 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 20,000$         20,000$          

409,000$        
102,300$        

511,300$        
46,000$          

557,300$        
167,200$        

725,000$        

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (30.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative C1C - New Chlorine Equipment in New Chlorine Building

Page 56 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 73,000$         73,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
3 Erosion / Sedimentation Control 1 LS 5,000$           5,000$            
4 Site Improvements 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
5 Stormwater Improvevments 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
6 New Building 320 SF 700$              224,000$        
7 Proposed Building Piping 1 LS 25,000$         25,000$          
8 Hypochlorite Generation & Storage 1 LS 200,000$       200,000$        
9 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 150,000$       150,000$        

10 HVAC Modifications 1 LS 50,000$         50,000$          
11 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 30,000$         30,000$          

887,000$        
221,800$        

1,108,800$     
99,800$          

1,208,600$     
302,200$        

1,511,000$     

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative C2 - New OSHG Equipment in New Building

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (25.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Page 57 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 41,000$         41,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
3 Erosion / Sedimentation Control 1 LS 5,000$           5,000$            
4 Site Improvements 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
5 Stormwater Improvevments 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
6 New Building 250 SF 700$              175,000$        
7 Proposed Building Piping 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
8 Hypochlorite Storage 1 LS 40,000$         40,000$          
9 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 40,000$         40,000$          

10 HVAC Modifications 1 LS 35,000$         35,000$          
11 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          

491,000$        
122,800$        

613,800$        
55,200$          

669,000$        
167,300$        

836,000$        

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative C3 - Commercial Delivery of Hypochlorite in a New Building

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (25.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Page 58 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 58,000$         58,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
3 Erosion / Sedimentation Control 1 LS 5,000$           5,000$            
4 Site Improvements 1 LS -$               -$               
5 Stormwater Improvevments 1 LS -$               -$               
6 CCB Interior Modifications 1 LS 75,000$         75,000$          
7 TM 20434-2 Recommendations 1 LS 416,000$       416,000$        
8 Temporary Water Service 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
9 Tracer Study 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          

10 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
11 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 5,000$           5,000$            

704,000$        
176,000$        

880,000$        
79,200$          

959,200$        
239,800$        

1,199,000$     

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative CCB1 - Rehabilitation / Modification of Existing CCB

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (25.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Page 59 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 81,000$         81,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
3 Erosion / Sedimentation Control 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
4 Site Improvements 1 LS 50,000$         50,000$          
5 Stormwater Improvevments 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
6 0.3MG Welded Steel Reservoir 1 LS 450,000$       450,000$        
7 Reservoir Preparation and Coating 1 LS 200,000$       200,000$        
8 Tracer Study 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
9 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 40,000$         40,000$          

10 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 20,000$         20,000$          

981,000$        
245,300$        

1,226,300$     
110,400$        

1,336,700$     
334,200$        

1,671,000$     

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative CCB2 - Construction of new 400,000 Gallon Replacement CCB

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (25.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Page 60 of 86



NO. ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 87,000$         87,000$          
2 Minor Change 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          
3 Erosion / Sedimentation Control 1 LS 10,000$         10,000$          
4 Site Improvements 1 LS 50,000$         50,000$          
5 Stormwater Improvevments 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
6 0.1MG Concrete Reservoir 1 LS 200,000$       200,000$        
7 TM 20434-2 Recommendations 1 LS 416,000$       416,000$        
8 Temporary Water Service 1 LS 100,000$       100,000$        
9 Tracer Study 1 LS 15,000$         15,000$          

10 Electrical Modifications 1 LS 40,000$         40,000$          
11 Telemetry / SCADA Modifications 1 LS 20,000$         20,000$          

1,053,000$     
263,300$        

1,316,300$     
118,500$        

1,434,800$     
358,700$        

1,794,000$     

* Costs listed are in 2020 dollars
** Current sales tax rate is 8.7%.

***

January 13, 2021

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

SUDDEN VALLEY WTP ASSESSMENT AND ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS PROJECT
PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE

Technical Memorandum 20434-6
Alternative CCB3 - Construction of New 100,000 Gallon Supplemental CCB

Subtotal*
Contingency (25%)

Subtotal
Washington State Sales Tax (9.0%)**

Subtotal
Design and Project Administration (25.0%)***

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST

Standard project design and administration fees are 25% of the subtotal including contingency and tax and 
is provided for planning purposes only.

G&O# 20434.00

Page 61 of 86



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CHLORINE GAS STORAGE 

 

Page 62 of 86



Page 1 of 4 

EXHIBIT C 

 

CHLORINE GAS STORAGE INFORMATION 
 

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE QUANTITIES 

 

The hazardous materials provisions of the building codes begin with Tables 307.1(1) 

and 307.1(2) of the 2015 International Building Code.  These tables set the maximum 

allowable quantities (per control area) of hazardous materials that pose either physical or 

health hazards.  Gaseous chlorine is considered both an oxidizing gas (physical hazard) 

and a toxic gas (health hazard) and as such is regulated under the stricter of the 

requirements of either table.  As a physical hazard, the maximum allowable quantity for 

liquefied oxidizing gases is 150 pounds.  As a health hazard, the maximum allowable 

quantity for corrosive or toxic materials is 150 pounds as a liquefied gas or 810 cubic feet 

at NTP as a gas (which is equivalent to a standard 150-pound cylinder).  There are some 

exceptions to these quantities, allowing two to four times the quantity to be stored or 

used.  However, for the quantities in storage and use at the Sudden Valley WTP, these 

exceptions would not have an effect on the code limits. 

 

HAZARDOUS OCCUPANCY AND CODE REQUIREMENTS 

 

When the quantity of chlorine gas exceeds the maximum allowable, the occupancy of the 

building or control area is typically upgraded to H-3.  A summary of the building code 

requirements for H-3 occupancies is outlined below.  The list below is not a complete and 

thorough list of code requirements, but rather a summarized listing of the many 

requirements. 

 

International Building Code Requirements 

 

● Provide a technical information report identifying the maximum expected 

quantities of hazardous materials and the methods of protection.  This may 

include a Hazardous Materials Management Plan and a Hazardous 

Materials Inventory Statement as required by the local fire code official.  

[IBC 414.1.3, IFC 5001.5.1, IFC 5001.5.2] 

 

● Provide mechanical ventilation where required by IBC, IFC, and IMC.  

[IBC 414.3] 

 

● Provide an emergency power supply for mechanical ventilation, treatment 

systems, temperature control, fire and emergency alarm systems, gas and 

smoke detection systems, or other electrically operated systems.  

[IBC 414.5.2, IBC 2702.2.8, IFC 6004.2.2.8] 

 

Page 63 of 86



Page 2 of 4 

● Standby power for mechanical ventilation, treatment systems, and 

temperature control systems shall not be required where an approved 

failsafe engineered system is installed.  [IBC 414.5.2.2, IFC 6004.2.2.8.1] 

 

● Provide an automatic fire detection system in accordance with IBC 907.2.  

[IBC 415.3] 

 

● Provide an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with IBC 903.2.5.  

[IBC 415.4] 

 

● Provide an approved manual emergency alarm system for storage areas.  

The alarm-initiating device should be installed outside each access door 

and should sound a local alarm.  [IBC 415.5.1] 

 

● If hazardous materials are transported through corridors or exit 

passageways, there shall be an emergency telephone system, a local 

manual alarm station, or an approved alarm-initiating device at not more 

than 150-foot intervals and at each exit and exit access doorway 

throughout the transport route.  [IBC 415.5.2] 

 

● Alarm systems should be monitored at an approved central location.  

[IBC 415.5.3] 

 

● At least 25 percent of perimeter walls shall be exterior walls.  [IBC 415.6] 

 

● Hazardous occupancies shall be in detached buildings.  [IBC 415.8] 

 

● Detached buildings for hazardous occupancies shall be set back not less 

than 50 feet from lot lines. 

 

● Floors should be liquid tight and non-combustible.  [IBC 415.8.4] 

 

● Storage and use cylinders of toxic gas shall be located within gas cabinets, 

exhausted enclosures, or gas rooms.  [IFC 6004.2.2.1] 

 

● Gas rooms shall be separated from other areas by not less than 1-hour fire 

barriers.  [IBC 415.10.2] 

 

International Fire Code Requirements 

 

● Provide a readily accessible manual valve or automatic remotely activated 

failsafe emergency shutoff valve on all piping at the point of use and at the 

storage cylinder.  [IFC 5003.2.2.1] 

 

Page 64 of 86



Page 3 of 4 

● Provide safeguards to prevent the backflow of hazardous materials.  

[IFC 5003.2.2.1] 

 

● Any gas piping greater than 15 psi requires an approved means of leak 

detection and automatic shutoff.  [IFC 5003.2.2.1] 

 

● Equipment using hazardous materials shall be braced and anchored to 

resist seismic forces per IBC.  [IFC 5003.2.8] 

 

● An automatic sprinkler system shall be installed in all Group H 

occupancies.  [IFC 903.2.5, IFC 5004.5]  The sprinkler system shall be 

designed per NFPA 13.  [IFC 903.3.1.1] 

 

● Indoor rooms or areas in which hazardous materials are dispensed or used 

shall be protected by an automatic fire-extinguishing system.  

[IFC 5005.1.8] 

 

● One or more gas cabinets or exhausted enclosures shall be provided to 

handle leaking cylinders.  [IFC 6004.2.2.3] 

 

Exemption: 

 

○ Gas cabinets or exhausted enclosure are not required if: 

 

1. Approved containment vessels or systems capable of fully 

containing a release; 

 

2. Trained staff are at an approved location; 

 

3. Containment vessels or systems are capable of being 

transported to the leaking cylinder, container, or tank. 

 

● The ventilation exhaust from a gas room shall be directed to a treatment 

system, which shall be utilized to handle the accidental release of gas.  

The treatment system shall be capable of neutralizing the contents of the 

largest single vessel.  [IFC 6004.2.2.7] 

 

Treatment System Exemptions: 

 

○ Storage of Toxic Gas – A treatment system is not required to 

protect a storage area if: 

 

1. Valve outlets are equipped with gastight plugs or caps; 

 

Page 65 of 86



Page 4 of 4 

2. Handwheel-operated valves are secured to prevent 

movement; and 

 

3. Approved containment vessels are provided for leaking 

cylinders, as noted below. 

 

○ Use of Toxic Gas – A treatment system is not required to protect a 

use area for toxic gases supplied in cylinders not exceeding 

1,700 pounds water capacity and if: 

 

1. An approved gas detection system with a sensing interval 

of less than 5 minutes is provided; and 

 

2. An approved automatic closing failsafe valve is located 

immediately adjacent to cylinder valves. 

 

● Provide a gas detection system capable of detecting the presence of gas at 

or below the permissible exposure limit and also capable of monitoring the 

discharge of an exhaust treatment system at or below one-half of the 

immediately dangerous to life and health limit.  [IFC 6004.2.2.10] 

 

● The gas detection system shall initiate a local alarm and transmit a signal 

to a constantly attended location.  [IFC 6004.2.2.10.2] 

 

● The gas detection system shall automatically close the shutoff valve at the 

source.  [IFC 6004.2.2.10.3] 

 

International Mechanical Code Requirements 

 

● Provide either natural ventilation or a mechanical exhaust ventilation 

system.  [IMC 502.8.1] 

 

● Mechanical ventilation shall be provided at a rate of not less than 1 cfm 

per square foot of floor area.  [IMC 502.8.1.1] 

 

● Mechanical ventilation shall be continuous.  [IMC 502.8.1.1] 

 

● Provide a labeled emergency manual shutoff for the ventilation system.  

Shutoff should be located outside of the room adjacent to the main access 

door.  [IMC 502.8.1.1] 

 

● Ventilation system for gas rooms shall operate under negative pressures 

within the room.  [IMC 502.8.1.2, IFC 5003.8.4.2] 

 

Page 66 of 86



 

 Resolution No. 869 
Affirmation of the General 

Manager’s Emergency Declaration 
associated with the Division 30 

Water Main Leak 
DATE SUBMITTED:  February 3, 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. Resolution No. 869 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 

BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
On January 27, 2021, District operations staff identified a significant leak in the water 
transmission main that feeds the Division 30 water reservoir, which serves as the sole 
water supply for a significant portion of Sudden Valley residents. The leak was determined 
to be in a steep slope adjacent to Lake Whatcom Boulevard, and of a magnitude that it 
jeopardized the District’s ability to maintain water supply in the Division 30 reservoir. 
Based upon the location and depth of the leak, it was determined to be beyond the 
capability of District staff and equipment to safely and effectively perform timely repairs.  

Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 39.04.280 provides authority to the District to waive 
competitive bidding requirements when awarding public works contracts in the event of an 
emergency, and District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(1) provides authority to the 
General Manager to issue a declaration of emergency and execute public works contracts 
necessary to address the emergency. The General Manager declared an emergency 
associated with the leak on January 28, 2021, and executed a public works contract with 
RAM Construction General Contractors the following day to perform the repairs. 
Temporary repairs were completed on February 2, 2021, with permanent repairs to be 
completed once necessary materials are available. 

Per District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(3), if an emergency contract is awarded 
without competitive bidding, the Board of Commissioners or its designee must enter a 
written finding of an emergency into the public record no later than two (2) weeks 
following the contract award.” Resolution No. 869 has been developed to meet statutory 
and District requirements associated with public works contracting for the emergency 
repairs. 

  

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 7.B 

Page 67 of 86



FISCAL IMPACT 
To be determined based upon actual repairs; the initial public works contract is for 
$54,250. 

APPLICABLE EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT ATTRIBUTE(S) 
Product Quality 
Customer Satisfaction 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 869. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
Recommended motion is: 

 “I move to adopt Resolution No. 869 as presented.” 

 

 

Page 68 of 86



 

 

Resolution No. 869  Adopted February 10, 2021 
Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 869 

 
 

A Resolution of the Board of Commissioners 
Affirming a Declaration of Emergency Issued by the District General Manager associated with the 

January 28, 2021 Division 30 Water Transmission Main Leak 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District (“District”) is a special purpose district authorized 
under Title 57 Revised Code of Washington (“RCW”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District owns and operates water and sewer utilities within its service area; and 
 
WHEREAS, an essential component of the District’s water utility infrastructure is an approximately 1,845-
foot long, 6-inch diameter ductile iron water transmission main defined as Water Main SVT501 in the 
District’s asset management system; and 
 
WHEREAS, Water Main SVT501 runs from the District’s Division 30 water pump station under Lake 
Whatcom Boulevard and up a steep slope to supply the Division 30 water reservoir; and 
 
WHEREAS, Water Main SVT501 is the sole means of supplying potable water to the Division 30 water 
reservoir; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Division 30 water reservoir provides potable water to a significant portion of the Sudden 
Valley residential community; and 
 
WHEREAS, District personnel recognized a significant increase in water demand in the Division 30 area on 
January 25, 2021, and began investigating the potential of a leak that same day; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 27, 2021, District personnel were able to identify the location of the leak to be in an 
extremely steep slope and underlying large boulders; and 
 
WHEREAS, safe and effective repair of the leak was determined to be beyond the capability of District staff 
and equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.280 provides authority to the District to waive competitive bidding requirements 
when awarding public works and contracts for purchases in the event of an emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(1) provides “If an emergency exists, the…General 
Manager…will issue a written declaration that an emergency exists, waiving competitive bidding 
requirements, and award all necessary contracts to address the emergency;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the District General Manager issued a Declaration of Emergency, attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
associated with the Division 30 water transmission main leak on January 28, 2021; and 
 

Page 69 of 86



 

 

Resolution No. 869  Adopted February 10, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the District General Manager executed an emergency public works contract, attached hereto as 
Exhibit B, with RAM Construction General Contractors on January 29, 2021, to repair the leak; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(3) provides “Per RCW 39.04.280, if an emergency 
contract is awarded without competitive bidding, the Board of Commissioners or its designee must enter a 
written finding of an emergency into the public record no later than two (2) weeks following the contract 
award;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the foregoing recitals are a material part of this Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District 
do hereby resolve: 
 
Section 1.  Affirmation of Declaration of Emergency.   The Board affirms the Declaration of Emergency 
issued by the General Manager on January 28, 2021, attached hereto as Exhibit A. This affirmation is a 
finding of the Board per RCW 39.04.280(2)(b) and District Administrative Code 2.16.3(3). 
 
Section 2.  Approval of Public Works Contract. The Board approves the public works contract with RAM 
Construction General Contractors, attached hereto as Exhibit B, for emergency repair to the Division 30 
water transmission line. 
 
Section 3.  Timing and Effect.  This resolution shall be effective immediately and remain in full force and 
effect until a subsequent written order of the Board upon determination that the emergency has been 
adequately abated. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District, Whatcom County, 
Washington, at a regular meeting thereof, on the 10th day of February, 2021. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Laura Abele, President, Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachael Hope, Recording Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert Carmichael, District Legal Counsel 
 

Page 70 of 86



 

Declaration of Emergency  Issued January 28, 2021 
Page 1 of 2 
 
 
 
 

DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

 
 

A Declaration of Emergency by the General Manager related to 
Repair of the Division 30 Water Transmission Main Leak 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District (“District”) is a special purpose district authorized 
under Title 57 Revised Code of Washington (“RCW”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District owns and operates water and sewer utilities within its service area; and 
 
WHEREAS, an essential component of the District’s water utility infrastructure is an approximately 1,845-
foot long, 6-inch diameter ductile iron water transmission main defined as Water Main SVT501 in the 
District’s asset management system; and 
 
WHEREAS, Water Main SVT501 runs from the District’s Division 30 water pump station across Lake 
Whatcom Boulevard and up a steep slope to supply the Division 30 water reservoir; and 
 
WHEREAS, Water Main SVT501 is the sole means of supplying potable water to the Division 30 water 
reservoir; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Division 30 water reservoir provides potable water to a significant portion of the Sudden 
Valley residential community; and 
 
WHEREAS, District personnel recognized a significant increase in water demand in the Division 30 area on 
January 25, 2021, and began investigating the potential of a leak that same day; and 
 
WHEREAS, District personnel were able to identify the likely location of the leak to be in an extremely steep 
slope and underlying large boulders; and 
 
WHEREAS, safe and effective repair of the leak has been determined to be beyond the capability of District 
staff and equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 39.04.280 provides authority to the District to waive competitive bidding requirements 
when awarding public works and contracts for purchases in the event of an emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(1) provides “If an emergency exists, the…General 
Manager…will issue a written declaration that an emergency exists, waiving competitive bidding 
requirements, and award all necessary contracts to address the emergency;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the foregoing recitals are a material part of this Resolution; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the General Manager of the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District does hereby 
declare: 

Page 71 of 86

justin.clary
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



Section 1. Declaration of Emergency. In compliance with District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(1),
and RCW 39.04.280, the General Manager of the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District declares that an
emergency exists that presents a real, immediate threat to the proper performance of essential functions
of the District, or will likely result in material loss or damage to property, bodily injury, or loss of life.

Section 2. Emergency Procurements. The General Manager, Assistant General Manager/District Engineer,

Finance Manager/Treasurer, and Operations Manager are hereby authorized to make emergency
procurements consistent with District Administrative Code Section 2.16.3(1) and RCW 39.04.280.

Section 3. Timing and Effect. This declaration shall be effective immediately and remain in full force and
effect until terminated by a subsequent declaration of the General Manager, or by subsequent action of the
District Board of Commissioners.

DECLARED by the General Manager of Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District, Whatcom County,
Washington, on the 28th day of January, 2021.

Justin ‘lary, General Ma

ATTEST:

Rachael Hope, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

Declaration of Emergency Issued January 28, 2021
Page 2 of 2

Page 72 of 86



Page 73 of 86

justin.clary
Text Box
EXHIBIT B



Page 74 of 86



Page 75 of 86



Page 76 of 86



Page 77 of 86



Page 78 of 86



 

  
Authorization for Application  

to the Washington State  
Public Works Board 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 3, 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. none 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 

BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
The Public Works Assistance Account (PWAA; formally the Public Works Trust Fund) was 
established by the Washington State Legislature (Revised Code of Washington [RCW] 
43.155) to create a reliable and sustainable resource for local governments to meet critical 
infrastructure financing needs. The Public Works Board operates the PWAA revolving loan 
program, and is comprised of 13 local government infrastructure representatives 
appointed by the governor. The Public Works Board meets once per month to conduct the 
business-of-the-board. Position No. 7 of the Public Works Board is represented by a sewer 
and water district manager. The 4-year term of the current Position No. 7 board member, 
Diane Pottinger, is scheduled to expire June 30. Applications are due to the Washington 
Association of Sewer and Water Districts (WASWD) board on February 15; from the list of 
candidates, the WASWD board will submit two candidates for consideration of 
appointment by Governor Inslee. WASWD requires that applicants obtain approval from 
their Board of Commissioners for application of appointment to the Public Works Board. 

During the District general manager’s past and most recent performance evaluations, the 
Board of Commissioners has indicated a desire for the general manager to continue to 
focus on building partnerships, both at the regional and state level. Appointment to the 
Public Works Board would significantly enable partnership building, as well as benefit the 
District by allowing staff to remain abreast of current PWAA programs and associated 
funding opportunities. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact is anticipated; travel expenses are reimbursed by the State. 

  

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 7.C 

Page 79 of 86

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.155


APPLICABLE EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT ATTRIBUTE(S) 
Employee Leadership and Development 
Financial Viability 
Stakeholder Understanding and Support 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the general manager to apply for appointment 
to the Public Works Board. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
Recommended motion is: 

“I move to authorize the general manager to submit an application for appointment 
to Position No. 7 of the Washington State Public Works Board.” 

 

 

Page 80 of 86



 

  

Disposal of 
Surplus Property 

 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 3, 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS  1. List of Surplus Property dated Nov. 10, 2020 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
Attached is a list of miscellaneous surplus items that the District no longer needs. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The District may realize some revenue through sale of items identified as having value. 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends the Board declare the property presented in the attached list as surplus 
and authorize staff to dispose of each. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
A recommended motion is: 

“I move to declare the property defined in the list dated November 10, 2020, as 
surplus and authorize staff to dispose of each item in a manner that is most 
beneficial to the District and consistent with state law.” 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 7.D 

Page 81 of 86



LWWSD Surplus Property List 
11.10.2020 

 
Item Asset 

ID 
Model / Serial 
Number 

Condition Value Method of 
Disposal 

Fluorometer  Turner Designs 
Cyclops C7 Optical 
Brightner UV Probe/ 
2104718 

Good  
 
 
$1,932 
(depreciated) 

 
 
 
Sale 

Data Logger w/ 10 
meter cable 

 Turner Designs 
Databank 
Datalogger/2900515 

Good 

      

      

      

      

      

 

Page 82 of 86



 

  

General Manager’s 
Report 

 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 4, 2021 MEETING DATE: February 10, 2021 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. General Manager’s Report 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL

/OTHER 
 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
Updated information from the General Manager in advance of the Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
None required. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
None. 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 9.A 

Page 83 of 86



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 1 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

General Manager’s Report 
Upcoming Dates & Announcements 

Regular Meeting – Wednesday, February 10, 2021 – 6:30 p.m. 

Important Upcoming Dates 

Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District 

Regular Board Meeting Wed Feb 24, 2021 8:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Employee Staff Meeting Thu Feb 11, 2021 8:00 a.m. 
Remote Attendance 
Commissioner Carter to attend 

Investment Comm. Meeting Wed Apr 28, 2021 10:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Safety Committee Meeting Tue Feb 25, 2021 8:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Lake Whatcom Management Program 

Data Group Meeting Thu Feb 11, 2021 9:00 a.m. Remote Attendance 

Policy Group Meeting Wed Feb 17, 2021 3:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Joint Councils Meeting Wed Mar 31, 2021 6:30 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Other Meetings 

WASWD Section III Meeting Tue Mar 9, 2021 7:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Whatcom Water Districts 
Caucus Meeting 

Wed Feb 17, 2021 1:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Whatcom County Council of 
Governments Board Meeting 

Wed May 12, 
2021 

3:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Committee Meeting Reports 

Safety Committee: 
 Committee was scheduled to meet on January 28, 2021; however, a number of emergencies 

occurred simultaneously (Division 30 water main leak, Division 7 water main leak, and North 
Point sewer lift station pump failure) necessitated cancellation. 

Investment Committee: 
 Committee met on January 27, 2021; discussion included a review of the District’s current 

investment portfolio, potential revisions to the District’s investment policy for board 
consideration, and the status of the rate study being completed by FCS Group. 

Upcoming Important Board Meeting Topics 

 Sudden Valley water treatment plant alternatives analysis 
 Euclid sewer lift station renovation public works contract award 
 Lake Whatcom Boulevard sewer interceptor rehabilitation public works contract award 
 Customer payment plan program review 
 Investment policy review 

  

Page 84 of 86



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 2 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

2021 Initiatives Status 

Administration and Operations 

Six-Year Business Plan 
 Develop department-specific business plans that define staffing, facility, and equipment needs 

necessary to meet level-of-service standards over the six-year planning horizon. 
The management team has initiated plan development taking into consideration the results of 
the Effective Utility Management self-assessment completed in 2020. 

Rate Study 
 Conduct a rate study for the water and sewer utilities for the six-year planning horizon, including 

funding strategies related to significant capital improvements anticipated during and beyond the 
planning horizon. 
A contract for the rate study has been executed and work is proceeding. 

Investment Policy Review 
 Conduct a comprehensive review of the District’s investment policy aimed at optimizing return 

on investments while sufficiently protecting District funds. 
The investment policy has been reviewed by the Investment Committee; revisions to the policy 
will be provided for board consideration following discussion during a work session on the 
District’s fiscal management policies scheduled for February 10. 

Capital Improvement Program Support 
 Support the Engineering Department through management of specific capital improvement 

project(s). 
The general manger is managing the Eagleridge Water Booster-Metering Station Conversion 
project (District Project No. C2011). 

Fill Anticipated Finance Manager Position Vacancy 
 With the retirement of the District’s Finance Manager anticipated in July 2021, engage in a 

recruitment and hiring process that allows for seamless transition of leadership in the Finance 
Department. 
The finance manager job description was updated in 2020. Development of recruitment 
documents will be prepared and advertised in late-February 2021. 

Negotiate Successor District-AFSCME Agreement 
 With the current labor agreement scheduled to expire December 31, 2021, negotiate a 

successor agreement that aligns with District financial capacity and Board goals. 
To be initiated summer 2021. 

Emergency Response/System Security 

America’s Water Infrastructure Act-compliant Risk Management Program 
 Conduct a USEPA-compliant risk and resilience assessment by June 30, 2021. 

Drafts of the sewer and water utility assessments are currently under management review. 
Certification of both utility assessments is anticipated in February (the federal certification 
deadline is June 30, 2021). 

 Develop a USEPA-compliant emergency response plan by December 31, 2021. 
To be initiated following completion of the risk and resilience assessments (the federal 
certification deadline is December 31, 2021).  

Page 85 of 86



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT PAGE 3 

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

 

Community/Public Relations 

General 
 Website 

The District’s web content is being updated on a regular basis, including regular posts specific to 
District operations in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 Social Media 
Posts are being made to District Facebook and LinkedIn pages regularly; Nextdoor is regularly 
monitored for District-related posts. 

 Press Releases 
Press releases will be issued, as appropriate, throughout 2021. 

Intergovernmental Relations 
 J Clary and R Munson attended the Whatcom County Natural Hazard and Mitigation Plan update 

kick-off meeting on January 27, and are scheduled to attend a subsequent coordination meeting 
on February 9. 

 J Clary met with the Sudden Valley Community Association interim general manager on February 
2 to introduce and coordinate District services, and is scheduled to present on District services 
and 2020-21 projects to the SVCA board during its February 27 meeting. 

 J Clary is scheduled to attend the WASWD Section III meeting on February 9. 

Public Works Board 
 Pursue appointment as WASWD representative on the Washington State Public Works Board. 

To be pursued when the application process for the vacant position opens in spring 2021. 

Lake Whatcom Water Quality 

Management Program 
 Participate in meetings of Lake Whatcom Management Program partners. 

J. Clary is scheduled to attend the Lake Whatcom Management Program Data Group meeting on 
February 11 and the Interjurisdictional Coordinating Team meeting on February 18. 

Onsite Septic System Conversion Program 
 Pursue connection of the one remaining septic-served parcel located within 200 feet of District 

sewer system identified in the memorandum to the Board dated April 9, 2020. 
To be initiated. 

Page 86 of 86


	0 Covid Phone Meeting Memo
	1 Agenda
	4 Agenda Bill - Consent Agenda
	4.1 Attachment - 2021.01.27 Minutes
	7.A Agenda Bill - SVWTP Alternatives Analysis G&O Briefing #4
	7.A.1 Attachment - Draft Tech Memo 20434-6 - Sudden Valley WTP Disinfection System Analysis
	Introduction
	Background and Existing Facilities
	Figure A-1 - Chlorine Disinfection Equipment
	Figure A-2 - Chlorine Contact Basin Plan
	Figure A-3 - Chlorine Contact Basin Section
	Figure A-4 - Chlorine Contact Basin Photograph

	Alternatives Analysis
	Figure A-5 - Alternative C1C - Chlorine Building Modified Site Plan
	Figure A-6 - UGSI/PSI OSHG System
	Figure A-7 - Alternative C2 - New Chlorine Building Modified Site Plan
	Figure A-8 - Alternative C3 - New Chlorine Building Modified Site Plan
	Figure A-9 - Alternative CCB1 - Modified CCB Configurations
	Figure A-10 - Alternative CCB2 Site Plan
	Figure A-11 - Alternative CCB3 Site Plan

	Summary
	Exhibit A - Figures
	Exhibit B - Recommended Alternative Cost Estimates
	Exhibit C - Additional Information on Chlorine Gas Storage

	7.B Agenda Bill - Resol 869-Div 30 Water Main Emergency Declaration
	7.B.1 Attachment - Resolution 869
	7.B.2 Attachment - Exhibt A_Emergency Declaration
	7.B.3 Attachment - Exhibit B_PW Contract
	7.C Agenda Bill - PWB Application
	7.D Agenda Bill - Disposal of Surplus Property
	7.D.1 Attachment - Surplus Property List
	9 Agenda Bill - Managers Report
	9.1 Attachment - Manager's Report

